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Turnover was HK$2,037.7 million (2013: HK$1,929.2
million), up 5.6%

Gross profit margin was 13.6% (2013: 13.7%),
dropped by 0.1 percentage points

Profit attributable to equity shareholders was
HK$107.6 million (2013: HK$139.5 million),
dropped by 22.8%

Profit for the year before the net gain on disposal
of properties recorded last financial year, valuation
(loss)/gain on investment properties and impairment
losses on fixed assets amounted to HK$125.1
million (2013: HK$120.4 million), up 3.9%

Basic earnings per share were HK85.71 cents (2013:
HK111.67 cents)

BEDIRERARERE39.051l - IkRELLEAT2.3% Final dividend of HK39.0 cents per share was
proposed, representing payout ratio of 72.3%
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FINANCIAL CALENDAR
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Interim results announcement 28 November 2013
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Paid date of the interim dividend 30 December 2013
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Annual results announcement

EiEmERmNBeER
—BREFAE
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Closure of register of members
— Annual general meeting

— Proposed final dividend
IREREFRE
Annual general meeting

ANEARR SR AT B A
Payable date of the final dividend

26 June 2014
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(@?EE%W%)
" (RREERM@X)

8 September 2014 to 11 September 2014
(both days inclusive)

18 September 2014 to 22 September 2014
(both days inclusive)

E—HFERA+—H
11 September 2014

—ZE—F+ A/NHEZ AT
On or before 6 October 2014
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FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | am pleased
to present the annual results of Fairwood Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2014.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

During the year under review, the Group recorded turnover of
HK$2,037.7 million, up 5.6% over the previous year (2013:
HK$1,929.2 million). Gross profit margin dropped by 0.1
percentage points from 13.7% to 13.6%. Profit attributable
to equity shareholders was HK$107.6 million (2013: HK$139.5
million), representing a drop of 22.8%. Profit for the year before
the net gain on disposal of properties recorded last financial year,
valuation (loss)/gain on investment properties and impairment
losses on fixed assets amounted to HK$125.1 million (2013:
HK$120.4 million), representing an increase of 3.9%. Basic
earnings per share were HK85.71 cents (2013: HK111.67 cents).

DIVIDENDS

The Board recommends to pay a final dividend of HK39.0 cents
(2013: a final dividend of HK39.0 cents and a special final
dividend of HK10.0 cents) per share for the year ended 31 March
2014. Together with the interim dividend of HK23.0 cents (2013:
HK23.0 cents) per share paid during the year, the total dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2014 amounts to HK62.0 cents
(2013: HK72.0 cents) per share, representing a total distribution
of approximately 72.3% of the Group’s profit for the year.
The proposed final dividend will be paid on or before Monday,
6 October 2014 to shareholders whose names appear on the
Register of Members of the Company at the close of business on
Monday, 22 September 2014.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Hong Kong

The Group is glad to have achieved encouraging growth in both
turnover and profit during the year. Positive responses have been
received from customers as products including Claypot Rice,
ltalian Risotto and Thick-Cut Black Pork Cutlet were introduced.
Additionally, Fairwood'’s signature dishes such as Ah Wood Curry
and Baked Pork Chop Rice have been further improved. The
Group's dedicated effort to delivering great-tasting and high
quality food has been a proven success, as seen from the increase
in headcounts and average spending levels. During the year,
six new fast food stores were opened to broaden our reach to
customers; and to spread our mission of “Enjoy great food, Live a
great life!” to every corner of Hong Kong.

Although the overall business environment remained challenging,
with high operating costs including rental, labour and food costs,
Fairwood was able to weather through such conditions with
the support of its unique business model. Corporate initiatives
implemented throughout the years including improvements to the
Central Food Processing Plant, SAP Enterprise Resources Planning
System, flexible staff scheduling and global sourcing strategy have
all enabled the Group to maximise returns and minimise costs.
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During the year, new facilities
were installed at the central food
processing plant. Resources have
been invested to improve automation so as

to enhance product quality consistency, and at the same time
maximise efficiency. It is believed that such enhancements will
enable better support to our front line operations, in turn easing
the heavy workload at our stores.

Mainland China

The gloomy outlook of the global economy and slower than
expected growth in Mainland China have adversely changed
consumer spending sentiment. Together with the persistently high
operating costs in food, labour and rental, 2014 transpired to be
a difficult year for catering and fast food business. In response,
the management has adjusted its strategies and undertaken a
series of finetuning and consolidation of the Group’s operations,
including the closing of under-performing stores and reinforcing
operational fundamentals. Furthermore, the Group decided to
adopt a prudent approach by making substantial provision on
fixed assets for certain under-performing stores, especially those
located in the North. Moving forward, the management will
continue to make reference to the business model in Hong Kong
when implementing the strategies for Mainland China operation
with more management resources devoted to the South. All in
all, the management remains optimistic that the Mainland China
operation would turn the corner and contribute to the growth of
the Group in the future.
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Network

During the year under review, the Group opened seven new stores
including six in Hong Kong and one in Mainland China. As of 31
March 2014, the Group has a total of 110 stores in operation in
Hong Kong, including 103 fast food stores, three Kenting Tea
Houses, three Buddies Cafes and one other specialty restaurant. In
Mainland China, the Group operates 21 fast food stores and one
specialty restaurant.

Recruitment and Training

Human resources are one of the Group’s core assets. Our team'’s
continuous support and effort over the years has significantly
contributed to the Group's success. Fairwood is committed to
developing career programs and training courses to equip our
personnel with the required technical and management skills as
well as to encourage their sense of belonging and enable them to
grow with the Group.

Labour shortage is one of the main challenges that the industry is
currently facing and it is increasingly difficult to recruit experienced
staff. To tackle this issue, Fairwood has pledged to step up
efforts to attract talented workers by offering comprehensive
staff development programs. The Group believes every person
is a valuable asset to the Group regardless of their gender, age,
ethnicity and background.

e
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The Group is honoured to have received the “Outstanding Award
for Social Inclusion” from The Hong Kong Council of Social
Service during the year. Our human resources team has been
constantly communicating with our front line employees to get a
better understanding of their needs. Students and housewives are
encouraged to join our team with a flexible scheduling scheme to
fit their daily schedules, while “back of house” employees are also
encouraged to join the “front of house” if deemed appropriate.
The Group believes it is important to foster a happy and nurturing
culture within the organisation, so as to build a happy working
team which will translate into a happy dining experience for our
customers.

Corporate Social Responsibility

Fairwood always believes “People come first” and continues to
devote significant time and energy to the betterment of society.
Apart from the “Fairwood $4 Meal Campaign”, the Group has
launched two CSR campaigns throughout the year, namely the
“Fairwood Gives Warmth Campaign” and “Fairwood Breakfast
Give-Out Campaign”. The “Fairwood Gives Warmth Campaign”
aims to share a feeling of warmth and inclusion with citizens
that are living in lower income neighbourhoods by offering them
complimentary glutinous rice with chicken. In addition, Fairwood
has also collaborated with St. James Settlement and organised the
“Fairwood Breakfast Give-Out Campaign”. Students in need were
eligible to redeem a hot breakfast to energize them for the day.
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As one of the leading fast food operators in Hong
Kong, it is our mission not only to exceed the
expectations of our customers and achieve returns for
shareholders, but also to continue embracing the well-
being of the wider community as one of our top priorities.

PROSPECTS

Looking ahead, we see tremendous opportunity for Fairwood
and we are determined to invest in our brand to invigorate future
performance. The management will adopt an aggressive expansion
approach with the aim of opening around twelve new fast food
stores in Hong Kong in the coming year. Locations selected for the
new stores will include residential estates, shopping malls, MTR
stations and more, to provide better coverage for customers.

Product innovation is another area that the Group will continue
to focus on. For the coming year, various innovative dishes will be
launched to satisfy our customers’ constantly evolving palates.

Due to the relatively challenging business environment in Mainland
China, the Group expects that factors adverse to operation will
persist in the coming year but remains positive about the market
over the long run. Fairwood will continue to prudently expand its
network in Mainland China, leveraging its brand and reputation,
with an initial focus on the South.

APPRECIATION

I would like to extend my heartfelt gratitude to the management
team and our staff for their excellent performance throughout the
year. | would also like to thank the community for their continued
support, as well as our shareholders and business partners for
their trust and confidence in Fairwood.

Having learned from our past experience, | am optimistic about
the Group's prospects and believe we will continue to grow
stronger in the future. We will commit more resources and effort
to people management, so as to further develop our happy and
productive workforce.

£ \ O
EHRB
Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung
MITERE

Executive Chairman

T —T-MFARAZTRA
Hong Kong, 26 June 2014
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

At 31 March 2014, total assets of the Group were HK$887.9
million (2013: HK$862.0 million). The Group’s working capital
was HK$127.4 million (2013: HK$105.1 million), represented
by total current assets of HK$421.2 million (2013: HK$378.6
million) against total current liabilities of HK$293.8 million (2013:
HK$273.5 million). Current ratio, being the proportion of total
current assets against total current liabilities, was 1.4 (2013: 1.4).
Total equity was HK$535.3 million (2013: HK$519.7 million).

The Group finances its business with internally generated cash
flows and available banking facilities. At 31 March 2014, the
Group had bank deposits and cash amounting to HK$326.1
million (2013: HK$291.0 million), representing an increase
of 12.1% from 2013. Most bank deposits and cash were
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, United States dollars and
Renminbi.

At 31 March 2014, the Group had total bank loans of HK$20.9
million (2013: HK$26.0 million) denominated in Hong Kong
dollars. All of the Group’s bank borrowings were subject to the
floating rate basis and the maturity of borrowings are up to 2019.
The unutilised banking facilities were HK$276.3 million (2013:
HK$315.8 million). The gearing ratio of the Group dropped to
3.9% (2013: 5.0%), which was calculated based on the total bank
loans over total equity.

Profitability

Return on average equity was 20.4% (2013: 24.5%), being profits
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company excluding the
net gain on disposal of properties against the average total equity
at the beginning and the end of the year.

Capital Expenditure

During the year, the capital expenditure was approximately
HK$78.3 million (2013: HK$111.3 million). The decrease was due
to fewer shops opened compared to last year.

Financial Risk Management

The Group's receipts and expenditures were mainly denominated
in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. The impact of the fluctuation
in exchange rate is immaterial to the Group's financial position.
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The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through
cash at bank and other financial assets that are denominated in
a currency other than the functional currency of the operations
to which they relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are
primarily United States dollars and Renminbi. As United States
dollar is pegged to Hong Kong dollar, the Group does not expect
any significant movements in the United States dollar/Hong Kong
dollar exchange rate. The Group ensures that the net exposure is
kept to an acceptable level by buying or selling foreign currencies
at spot rates where necessary to address short term imbalances.

For the purpose of offsetting the exposure of the interest rate
fluctuation, the Group had entered certain forward interest rate
swaps with financial institutions. The swaps were arranged to
match the maturity of the repayment schedule of certain bank
loans with the maturity over the next 2.5 years and had the fixed
swap rates ranging from 2.63% to 2.74%.

Charges on Group’s Assets

At 31 March 2014, the net book value of properties pledged as
security for banking facilities granted to certain subsidiaries of
the Group amounted to HK$45.5 million (2013: HK$47.0 million)
and no bank deposits and cash was used to pledge any loans or
banking facilities.

Commitments

The Group’s capital commitments outstanding at 31 March
2014 were HK$31.0 million (2013: HK$20.7 million). Included
in capital commitment outstanding at 31 March 2014 was an
amount of HK$7.9 million (2013: HK$14.7 million) for the future
development of the central food processing plant.

Contingent Liabilities

At 31 March 2014, guarantees are given to banks by the
Company in respect of mortgage loans and other banking facilities
extended to certain wholly-owned subsidiaries.

As at the end of the reporting period, the Directors do not
consider it probable that a claim will be made against the
Company under the guarantee arrangement. The maximum
liability of the Company at the end of the reporting period under
the guarantee is the amount of the facilities drawn down by
all the subsidiaries that are covered by the guarantees, being
HK$82.1 million (2013: HK$76.5 million).
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The Company has not recognised any deferred income in respect
of the guarantee as its fair value cannot be reliably measured and
there is no transaction price.

Employee Information

At 31 March 2014, the total number of employees of the Group
was approximately 4,600 (2013: 4,400). Staff costs for the year
were approximately HK$572.7 million (2013: HK$542.3 million).
Employees’ remuneration is commensurate with their job nature,
qualifications and experience. Salaries and wages are normally
reviewed annually based on performance appraisals and other
relevant factors.

The Group continues to offer competitive remuneration
packages, share options and bonus to eligible staff, based on the
performance of the Group and the individual employees. Also, the
Group has committed to provide related training programme to
improve the quality, competence and skills of all staff.
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Executive Directors

Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung, aged 62, is the Executive Chairman of
the Company and the Chairman of Nomination Committee of the
Company. Mr Lo graduated from the Parsons School of Design
with a Bachelor Degree in Fine Arts and also attended a course
on food and beverage management at New York University.
After completion of his studies in the U.S.A. in 1977, Mr Lo
returned to Hong Kong and obtained a Master Degree in Business
Administration. In 1981, Mr Lo joined Fairwood Fast Food Limited.
In 1991, he played a major role in the listing of the Company.
Mr Lo was the Managing Director of the Company from 1991 to
1999. He was appointed the Chairman and Chief Executive of the
Company in January 2000. On 1 January 2009, Mr Lo relinquished
his role as Chief Executive but remained as the Executive Chairman
of the Company. He is also a director of various subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr Lo is a director of Neblett Investments Limited which
has discloseable interests in the shares of the Company under the
provisions of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Mr Chan Chee Shing, aged 60, is the Executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Mr Chan received
a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Economics from the University
of Manitoba, Canada in 1977 and a Master of Business
Administration Degree from the University of East Asia, Macau
in 1987. Mr Chan has over 30 years’ experience in marketing.
Prior to joining the Group, He worked as a senior executive for
a restaurant group which is listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Mr Chan joined the
Group in 1995. He was appointed a Director of the Company in
January 1998 and was appointed Chief Executive Officer of the
Company on 1 January 2009. Mr Chan is also a director of various
subsidiaries of the Company.

Ms Mak Yee Mei, aged 47, is the Executive Director and
Company Secretary of the Company. Ms Mak holds a Bachelor
of Science Degree in Economics, a Master of Science Degree in
Finance and a Master Degree in Business Administration. She is
an Associate Member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales, the Chartered Institute of Management
Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators
as well as a Fellow Member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Ms Mak has extensive experience in
auditing, accounting and financial management. Prior to joining
the Company, she had held senior management positions in
several companies the securities of which are listed on the
Stock Exchange. Ms Mak joined the Company in 2004 and was
appointed Executive Director, Company Secretary and Authorized
Representative of the Company on 1 January 2010. She is also a
director of various subsidiaries of the Company.
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Non-executive Director

Mr Ng Chi Keung, aged 65, is the Non-executive Director of the
Company, Members of the Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr Ng holds a Master Degree
in Business Administration. He is an Associate Member of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Chartered Institute of Management Accountants. Mr Ng has over
30 years’ experience in finance and management. Prior to joining
the Group, he held senior management positions with a number
of well-known local and overseas multinational companies. Mr
Ng joined the Group in 1994 and was appointed a Director of the
Company in November 1995. He was re-designated as a Non-
executive Director of the Company from 1 January 2010 following
his retirement from the Group. At the same time, Mr Ng was also
appointed as a member of the Audit Committee and remains as a
member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr Ng
is an Independent Non-executive Director of Soundwill Holdings
Limited which is listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin, aged 66, was appointed an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in 1991. He
is also a Member of the Audit Committee and the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr Chan graduated
from The University of Hong Kong, the University of Strathclyde
and The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He holds a Bachelor
of Arts Degree, a Diploma in Social Work, a Master of Business
Administration Degree and a Master of Education Degree. He is a
Fellow Member of the Institute of Human Resources Management.
Mr Chan has over 40 years' experience in human resources
development in public, commercial and educational sectors and
is actively engaged in the professional development of student
services personnel in higher education in China and Hong Kong.
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Dr Peter Lau Kwok Kuen, aged 61, was appointed an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in
September 2000. He is also the Members of the Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company. Dr
Lau holds a Doctorate Degree in Business Administration from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University, an MBA Degree from
the University of Calgary in Canada and a Master of Buddhist
Studies from The University of Hong Kong. He is a member of The
Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants and the Society of
Certified Management Accountants of Canada. Dr Lau had over
12 years of management and accounting experience in the private
and public sectors in Canada prior to returning to Hong Kong in
1987. Dr Lau is currently the Chairman and Chief Executive of
Giordano International Limited which is listed on the main board
of the Stock Exchange. He is also the Chairman of the Advisory
Committees on management and marketing at The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University as well as Adjunct Professor of Marketing at
City University of Hong Kong.

Mr Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo, aged 49, was appointed an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in
November 2008. He is also a Member of the Audit Committee
of the Company. Mr Tsoi graduated from the University of
Western Ontario, Canada with an Honours Degree in Business
Administration in 1986. Mr Tsoi is currently an Executive Director
and the Chief Executive Officer of Varitronix International Limited
and an Executive Director of ReOrient Group Limited, both of
which are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange. He is
also the Deputy Chairman of the supervisory board of Data Modul
AG, which is listed on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange. He was
formerly a Non-executive Director of China WindPower Group
Limited and Zhidao International (Holdings) Limited, both of which
are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.
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Mr Peter Wan Kam To, aged 61, was appointed an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in September 2009. He
is also the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a Member of
the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr Wan is a Fellow
Member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. He was
a former partner of PricewaterhouseCoopers Hong Kong & China
firm and has been a practicing accountant in Hong Kong for over
30 years with extensive experience in auditing, finance, advisory
and management. Mr Wan is currently an Independent Director
of Mindray Medical International Limited (a company listed on the
New York Stock Exchange, USA) and RDA Microelectronics, Inc. (a
company listed on the NASDAQ). Mr Wan is also an Independent
Non-executive Director of several companies listed on the Stock
Exchange, namely China Resources Land Limited, Dalian Port (PDA)
Company Limited, Harbin Bank Co., Ltd., Huaneng Renewables
Corporation Limited, Kerry Logistics Network Limited, KFM
Kingdom Holdings Limited, S. Culture International Holdings
Limited and Shanghai Pharmaceuticals Holding Co., Ltd.. He was
formerly an Independent Non-executive Director of GreaterChina
Professional Services Limited and Real Gold Mining Limited, both
of which are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.
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The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Fairwood Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) has pleasure in submitting their annual report
together with the audited financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 March 2014.

Principal Place of Business

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda. Its registered office is
situated at Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM12,
Bermuda and principal place of business is situated at 2/F, TRP
Commercial Centre, 18 Tanner Road, North Point, Hong Kong.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The Group is principally engaged in the operation of fast food
restaurants and property investments. The principal activities and
other particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out on pages
137 and 138 to the financial statements.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations
of the operations of the Group during the financial year are set
out in note 3(b) to the financial statements.

Major Customers and Suppliers

For the year ended 31 March 2014, the aggregate amount of
turnover and purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers and suppliers represent less than 30% (2013: less than
30%) of the Group's total turnover and purchases respectively.

Financial Statements

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2014 and
the state of the Company’s and the Group's affairs as at that date
are set out in the financial statements on pages 46 to 138.

Transfer to Reserves

Profit attributable to equity shareholders, before dividends, of
HK$107,611,000 (2013: HK$139,469,000) has been transferred
to reserves. Other movements in reserves are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

An interim dividend of HK23.0 cents (2013: an interim dividend
of HK23.0 cents) per share was paid on 30 December 2013.
The Board now recommends the payment of a final dividend
of HK39.0 cents (2013: a final dividend of HK39.0 cents and a
special final dividend of HK10.0 cents) per share in respect of the
year ended 31 March 2014.
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Charitable Donations
Charitable donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$121,000 (2013: HK$58,000).

Fixed Assets
Movements in fixed assets during the year are set out in note 12
to the financial statements.

Share Capital

During the year, the Company purchased shares of the Company
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Shares were repurchased during the year to reduce
the dilutive effect of granting share options. Details of movements
in share capital of the Company during the year are set out in
note 25 to the financial statements.

Save as set out in note 25(d)(ii) to the financial statements, there
were no other purchases, sales or redemptions of the Company’s
listed securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during
the year.

Directors
The Directors of the Company (the “Directors”) during the
financial year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (Executive Chairman)
Chan Chee Shing (Chief Executive Officer)
Mak Yee Mei

Non-executive Director
Ng Chi Keung

Independent Non-executive Directors
Joseph Chan Kai Nin

Peter Lau Kwok Kuen

Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo

Peter Wan Kam To

In accordance with Bye-laws 109 and 189(viii) of the Company,
Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin and Dr Peter Lau Kwok Kuen shall retire
by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and Mr
Joseph Chan Kai Nin and Dr Peter Lau Kwok Kuen, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed for a fixed
term of three years and are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.
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(a) EA QA HER

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
As at 31 March 2014, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company and their associates
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code")
were as follows:

(a) Interests in the Company

SREERSITHEER
Ordinary Shares of HK$1 each
REBR
ETRE fhE#T
ol BB
AR Rk DAER Hitigs Ri#A By BAL
Number of
underlying
shares Percentage
pursuant of total
Personal Family Corporate Other to Share issued
interests interests interests interests Options Total shares
&H5 Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung 109,000 = = 55,435,384 = 55,544,384 44.27%
(Hf&E1)
(Note 1)
R Chan Chee Shing 15,000 - - - 1,000,000 1,015,000 0.81%
BER Mak Yee Mei 840,000 - - = 160,000 1,000,000 0.80%
BIsET: R0 FINeblett Investments Limited Note 1: These shares were held by Neblett Investments Limited

( [Neblett] ) FCFJ Holdings Limited
(ICR ) BE - ZERFDHIH
MIELABRG T EBRIBRRERN
EEFEREER - BRBEREREE
REZEEENI BT ROER -

X EABARRNRNRITER - MR E
HeENeblett R CRIFTIF G R 1) MfEas

(“Neblett”) and CFJ Holdings Limited (“CFJ"”). The companies
are beneficially owned by two separate trusts of which Mr
Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung is a discretionary object. Mr Dennis
Lo Hoi Yeung, by virtue of his interest in the trusts as a
discretionary object and as the Executive Chairman of the
Company, was deemed interested in the shares held by
Neblett and CFJ.
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(b) FRRFREFRAF ([ ARERE D)
HyRE s

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Positions
in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures (continued)
(b) Interests in Fairwood Fast Food Limited (“FFFL")

ERERELERHHE
Number of non-voting deferred shares

EARER Eiyd NE R Hitphgzs e

Personal Family  Corporate Other
interests interests interests interests Total
EHH Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung 11,500 - - 279,357 290,857

(FftE2)

(Note 2)

fisE2: 1 =A% {5 FPengto International Limited
([Pengto N#E - ARl —ELAZEH
BREARBESHENETHNER
Ha - BRBLEREERBZETN
WIS R AR - NG ARAR
RISNITEE + B AR YEHE B PengtoFfT
BHHRDERER

LR ARSI R R o

B bt 2 T X[ RE R AT &1 | — SR P iR oh -
PR R AR PR AE 75 IR B 55 35216 MR E i 17 Y
BRefMER - SIRRIREST RIAE M5 7 [A
ARAFNMBRMAR R-F-—NF=A=
T—B ARREZF - &STRABLM
M E ARSI AR T N\RN TR - LEH
BARR S EAEAREAR (ARG EFIKE
BISEXVEBPr B A TE 2 ) RORK (D ~ #RBEAR (D 3k
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Note 2: These shares were held by Pengto International Limited
("Pengto”), a company beneficially owned by a trust of
which Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung is a discretionary object. Mr
Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung, by virtue of his interest in the trust
as a discretionary object and as the Executive Chairman of
the Company, was deemed interested in the shares held by
Pengto.

All the interests stated above represent long positions.

Apart from the foregoing and those disclosed under the section
“Share Option Scheme” below, as at 31 March 2014, none of
the Directors or chief executives of the Company or any of their
spouses or children under eighteen years of age had any other
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which had been
entered in the register kept by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Details of Directors’ and chief executives’ interests under the
Company’s share option scheme are also set out in the section
“Share Option Scheme” below.

Share Option Scheme

As at 31 March 2014, the Company maintained two share option
schemes, namely, the 2002 Option Scheme and 2011 Option
Scheme. Details of these schemes are as follows:
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Share Option Scheme (continued)
(a) 2002 Option Scheme

The purpose of the 2002 Option Scheme was to attract and
retain the best quality personnel for the development of
the Company’s businesses; to provide additional incentives
to any employee of the Company or its subsidiaries or any
consultant, agent, representative, advisor, supplier of goods or
services, customer, contractor, business ally and joint venture
partner (the “2002 Option Scheme Qualifying Grantee"”) and
to promote the long term financial success of the Company by
aligning the interests of option holders to shareholders of the
Company.

Under the 2002 Option Scheme, Directors were authorised,
at their discretion, to invite any Director (including Non-
executive Director and Independent Non-executive Director)
or any of the 2002 Option Scheme Qualifying Grantee to take
up options to subscribe for shares in the Company at a price
which shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price
of the shares as stated in the daily quotation sheet of the
Stock Exchange on the date of offer; (ii) the average closing
price of the shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets
of the Stock Exchange for the 5 business days immediately
preceding the date of offer and (iii) the nominal value of a
share. The maximum entitlement for any one participant under
the 2002 Option Scheme shall not in any 12 months period up
to the date of grant exceed 1% of the Company’s shares in
issue.

On 7 September 2011, the Company terminated the 2002
Option Scheme and adopted the 2011 Option Scheme on the
same date. As a result of the termination, no further options
may be granted under the 2002 Option Scheme but the
options that have been granted and remained outstanding
as of that date under such scheme remain effective. As
at 26 June 2014, the total number of shares available for
issue under the 2002 Option Scheme (being share options
granted but remained outstanding) is 1,806,000 shares which
represented approximately 1.43% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at that date.
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Share Option Scheme (continued)

(b) 2011 Option Scheme
The purpose of the 2011 Option Scheme is to attract and
retain the best quality personnel for the development of the
Company’s businesses; to provide incentives or rewards to
any employee, Director (including Non-executive Director and
Independent Non-executive Director) or officer of any member
of the Group or any related trust or company (the “2011
Option Scheme Qualifying Grantee”) and to promote the
long term financial success of the Company by aligning the
interests of option holders to shareholders of the Company.

Under the 2011 Option Scheme, Directors were authorised,
at their discretion, to invite any of the 2011 Option Scheme
Qualifying Grantee to take up options to subscribe for shares
in the Company at a price which shall not be less than
whichever is the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares as
stated in the daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on
the date of offer; (ii) the average closing price of the shares as
stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange for
the 5 business days immediately preceding the date of offer
and (iii) the nominal value of a share.

As at 26 June 2014, the total number of shares available for
issue under the 2011 Option Scheme is 12,463,528 shares
which represented approximately 9.90% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at that date. The maximum
entitlement for any one participant under the 2011 Option
Scheme shall not in any 12 months period up to the date of
grant exceed 1% of the Company’s shares in issue.

The life of the 2011 Option Scheme is 10 years commencing
on 7 September 2011 and expiring on 6 September 2021.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Directors and
employees of the Group had the following interests in options to
subscribe for shares of the Company (market value per share at 31
March 2014 was HK$15.68 (2013: HK$16.80)) granted for HK$1
consideration under the 2002 Option Scheme and 2011 Option
Scheme respectively. The options are unlisted. Each option gives
the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share of HK$1
each of the Company.
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Share Option Scheme (continued)
(i) 2002 Option Scheme

RZB-Z% £h £R frn RZE-DE SERE
mA-H gl b3 i 8 =B=1-H SRBRE TEAAMN
RTEM BhE BhE BhE RTEN R BT AAN Bhme
BREHE #A ®¥H fTiesE %A 8B BREHA e BREME HAHE
Weighted
average
Closing price ~ price of closing
Number of ~ Number of Number of Number of Number of per share  price per share
options options options options options Exercise  immediately  immediately
outstanding granted lapsed exercised  outstanding pric  beforedate  before date
at 1 April during Date Exercisable during during  at31March per of grant of exercise
2013 the year granted period the year the year 2014 share of options of options
RER(EE) 1,000,000 - ZITNE AR-F-TF - - 1000000  #%626m K628 -
Chan Chee Shing MANR MA—H HK$6.26 HK$6.28
(Director) 8 April 2009 EIT-RE
=R=1-BHA
ARBENRTIE
Exercisable in
five tranches of 20%
during the period
from 1 April 2010
t0 31 March 2016
RER(ES) 240,000 - IZE-%% ARZE—F - (80,000) 160000  B¥eosw  EWeOTT  AMI65T
Mak Yee Mei =A-H —A-H HK$8.08 HK$8.07 HK$16.52
(Director) 1 March 2010 EITRE
TZR=t-R#H
ARBENRTE
Exercisable in
five tranches of 20%
during the period
from 1 January 2011
t0 31 December 2016
== 1,102,000 - ZETNE TRZF-TF (16,000) (526,000) 560,000 %%6.26 B%628T  BEKI654T
Employees MANR MA—H HK$6.26 HK$6.28 HK$16.54
8 April 2009 EIT-RE
=R=1-RHR
ARBENRTIE
Exercisable in
five tranches of 20%
during the period

from 1 April 2010
t0 31 March 2016
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() —SE_FERETEE) (i) 2002 Option Scheme (continued)
R=%-=f £ Eh fr RZZ-DF SERERE
mA-H il A il =A=1-A SEERE  TRAEW
FTRH BRE BRE BRE ATHRH BR  RTEAHM BRmE
BREYE #8 il TEHH L E ¥8  EREHA e BRUTE  TORHE
Weighted
average
Closing price ~price of closing
Number of ~ Number of Number of Number of Number of per share  price per share
options options options options options Exercise  immediately  immediately
outstanding granted lapsed exercised  outstanding pricc beforedate  before date
at 1 April during Date Exercisable during during  at31March per of grant of exercise
2013 the year granted period the year the year 2014 share of options of options
€8 60,000 - F—F AR=Z-2% = (20,000) 40000  E%I0907m  A¥I092T  AEILNT
Employee ZAtrA ZAtiA HK$10.90 HK$10.92 HK$15.92
16 February BTt
201 “ATREEH
ARHBEA%THE
Exercisable in
five tranches of 20%
during the period
from 16 February 2012
to 15 February 2017
8 640,000 - F—F AR=Z-2F (480,000) (160,000) - BB AR08 BRI
Employee )z AN )z AN HK$1091 HK$10.84 HK$17.38
28 April 2011 EIENE
TR T+HHR
ARHBEA%ITHE
Exercisable in
five tranches of 20%
during the period
from 28 April 2012
to 27 May 2019
€8 640,000 - FF AR=Z-2% = (160,000) 480000  A%1088m  BEI08T KI8T
Employee #ANA AANA HK$10.88 HK$10.82 HK$17.38
9 May 2011 2T
TANBHA
ARHBEA%THE
Exercisable in
five tranches of 20%
during the period
from 9 May 2012
to 8 May 2019
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Share Option Scheme (continued)
(ii)) 2011 Option Scheme

R=B-=f £R £h fn RoE-DE SEBRE
mA-R BFH KA i =B=t-A8 SEBRE  TEAAN
AMTREH Bk Bk BhE ATEH gk BFHAN Shing
BREHR 88 ®¥H TEHE #A g8 BREZA ke BRUTE  THORGE
Weighted
average
Closing price ~ price of closing
Number of ~ Number of Number of Number of Number of per share  price per share
options options options options options Exercise  immediately  immediately
outstanding granted lapsed exercised  outstanding pricc beforedate  before date
at 1 April during Date Exercisable during during  at31March per of grant of exercise
2013 the year granted period the year the year 2014 share of options of options
€8 - 100000 =—%F-=F TR-Z-ME (100,000) - - BEeS4m  BK1658T =
Employee MA-t+%A ME-t7A HK$16.54 HK$16.58
25 April 2013 F - -F
M A =TI RS
A HHE20%T(R
Exercisable in
five tranches of 20%
during the period

from 25 April 2014
to 24 April 2021

B R TRRENS ST BRRMS 0 BARE
INEFERNER - 2RISR R M
A1 (o)) K M FE22 -

fr B ESN - RAFEEREAERE - AT
SEEAMBRATDIELEEMNLY - B
EARBESE  HRTHRABHEEMEE
ARm T\ F R A AEBEARLRA L
HEAL [ AEEOEE (BT & B R DI Pr e
&M SRR & -

Information on the accounting policy for share options granted
and the weighted average value per option is provided in note
1(g)(ii) and note 22 to the financial statements respectively.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors or chief executives of the Company or any of
their spouses or children under eighteen years of age to acquire
benefits by means of acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations within the meaning
of the SFO.
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Substantial Interests in the Share Capital of the Company
As at 31 March 2014, the interests or short positions of every
person, other than the Directors and chief executives of the
Company, in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company, were as follows:

BER S 1EE 8T
BEEE R B
)8y Epals

Shares directly Percentage
and/or of total

indirectly held

issued shares

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

Neblett(PRzE1)

CFRJ(PffzE2)

Winning Spirit International
Corporation (FffzE1)

HSBC International Trustee
Limited (F#&E1)

HSBC Trustee (Cook Islands)
Limited (B E2)

Allard Partners Limited([APL |)
(BfFaE3)

Allard Partners Management Ltd.
(TAPML) (Pif5E3)

ANLCM Investments Pty Ltd
(TANLCM ) (PffzE3)

Wayne Victor Allard Peters
(TWVAP J) (F#E3)

Sheva Nominees Pty Ltd ([SNPL])
(Pt&E3)

Howard Kantor([HK ) (FfzE3)

Hayley Symon([HS 1) (Ki&E3)

(ii)
(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

Neblett (Note 1) 48,775,384 38.88%

CFJ (Note 2) 6,660,000 5.31%

Winning Spirit International 48,775,384 38.88%
Corporation (Note 1)

HSBC International Trustee 48,775,384 38.88%
Limited (Note 1)

HSBC Trustee (Cook Islands) 6,660,000 5.31%
Limited (Note 2)

Allard Partners Limited (“APL") 8,633,600 6.88%
(Note 3)

Allard Partners Management Ltd. 8,633,600 6.88%
("APML") (Note 3)

ANLCM Investments Pty Ltd 8,633,600 6.88%
("ANLCM") (Note 3)

Wayne Victor Allard Peters 8,633,600 6.88%
("WVAP") (Note 3)

Sheva Nominees Pty Ltd (“SNPL") 8,633,600 6.88%
(Note 3)

Howard Kantor (“HK") (Note 3) 8,633,600 6.88%

Hayley Symon (“HS") (Note 3) 8,633,600 6.88%
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Substantial Interests in the Share Capital of the Company
(continued)

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

These interests represented the same block of shares directly held
by Neblett. Winning Spirit International Corporation owned 100%
interest in Neblett and was therefore deemed to be interested in
the shares directly held by Neblett. HSBC International Trustee
Limited, in its capacity as a trustee of a trust of which Mr Dennis
Lo Hoi Yeung is a discretionary object, owned 100% interest in
Winning Spirit International Corporation and was therefore deemed
interested in the shares directly held by Neblett;

These interests represented the same block of shares directly
held by CFJ. HSBC Trustee (Cook Islands) Limited, in its capacity
as a trustee of a trust of which Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung is a
discretionary object, owned 100% interest in CFJ and was
therefore deemed interested in the shares directly held by CFJ;
and

These interests represented the same block of shares directly
held by APL. APML owned 100% interest in APL and was
therefore deemed to be interested in the shares directly held
by APL. WVAP owned 100% interest in ANLCM which in turn
owned 60% interest in APML whereas HK & HS each owned
50% interest in SNPL which, in its capacity as a trustee, owned
40% interest in APML. As such, WVAP, ANLCM, HK, HS and
SNPL were deemed interested in the shares directly held by APL
through their interests in APML.

All the interests stated above represent long positions.

Save as disclosed above, no other interest or short position in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company were recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO as at 31
March 2014.
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Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
annual report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

Continuing Connected Transactions

The particulars of the following continuing connected transactions
of the Group are set out below in compliance with the reporting
requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

(a) Tenancy agreement with New Champion International
Limited (“New Champion”)
As detailed in note 29(b) to the financial statements, FFFL,
a subsidiary of the Company, leased a property from New
Champion with a lease term of three years from 10 April
2009 to 9 April 2012 (“1st Transaction”) for the operation of
a fast food restaurant. On 31 October 2011, such lease was
renewed for a further three years from 10 April 2012 (”2nd
Transaction”). As New Champion is an associate of Mr Dennis
Lo Hoi Yeung (a Director of the Company), the entering into
the lease constituted continuing connected transaction for the
Company. Details of rent and deposits paid by FFFL relating to
the property for the above transaction are as follows:

T —E——fF
mA-HE mA+AZE mA—BZ
—z-mE —z-=x -z
=Y R =A=+-~ mANE

1 April 2013 to

(FZRRS)

10 April 2012 to

(F—RRH)

1 April 2012 to

31 March 2014 31 March 2013 9 April 2012

(2nd Transaction) (1st Transaction)

BT T BT BB T T

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

AFEERS Rent for the year 1,680 1,638 36

Heke Rental deposits 420 420 360
KIFEEEERAA

FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)
(b) Tenancy agreement with Hibony Limited (“Hibony")

As detailed in note 29(c) to the financial statements, FFFL
leased a property from Hibony for three years from 1 March
2012 for the operation of a fast food restaurant that had to
be relocated due to urban renewal. As Hibony is an associate
of Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (a Director of the Company), the
entering into the lease constituted continuing connected
transaction for the Company. Details of rent and deposits paid

EAMHES RIS FHBOT ¢ by FFFL relating to the property for the above transaction are
as follows:
—E-UE —T—=F
2014 2013
BT T BT IT
HK$'000 HK$'000
AEEHRE Rent for the year 2,493 2,493
Heke Rental deposits 660 660

B —RERIT(EX—K] R
7?{1‘57:1!:52
IEANBA TS SRR B 5 29(d)Fr 583t - R BRSE
RERBRESG N —ROBE ARG —
REEATHINIRS MEBE_ZT—M@
FZAZ+—HULEFEZRBEEEBK
1,122,00070( — & —=4F : #¥975,000
T0) B TYIRRBR AN E B A M AT E ©

RZE—=ZFHANH  KPRERER
55t —RET AL AN E A RS e - 1
FTH-IZE—=FNA—ARRz=—_F—=
FRA=TAHL  BEX—RRHERE -

B —RAERMELE  BRBLELZ

EFh—BBYE =D RI#EBG5%
20% K 15% ° M E REMRGEE

(ZIK AEF) )R BBEX—KAXR
NEIMBAEAT  FREE AKX

SERNRABREERERS -

(c) Service agreement with Sun Generation Limited (“Sun

Generation”)

As detailed in note 29(d) to the financial statements, FFFL
agreed to produce certain processed food products for Sun
Generation according to the Sun Generation’s specification
and services fee incurred for the year ended 31 March 2014 is
HK$1,122,000 (2013: HK$975,000) which was determined by
a cost-plus pricing method. On 6 May 2013, FFFL entered into
a service agreement with Sun Generation in respect of the
provision of the services for a term of six months commencing
from 1 April 2013 and expiring on 30 September 2013.

Sun Generation is owned as to 65% by Mr Henry Lo Hoi Nai,
20% by the wife of Mr Henry Lo Hoi Nai and 15% by an
independent third party. As Mr Henry Lo Hoi Nai is the brother
of Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (a Director of the Company),
Sun Generation is a connected person of the Company, and
the transaction with Sun Generation constituted continuing
connected transaction for the Company.
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Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

In compliance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in connection
with the above continuing connected transactions with New
Champion, Hibony and Sun Generation, the Independent Non-
executive Directors have reviewed and confirmed that the
transactions with New Champion, Hibony and Sun Generation (the
“Transactions”) have been entered into:

(i) inthe ordinary and usual course of business;

(i) either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable than those available to or from independent third
parties;

(i) in accordance with the terms of agreements governing the
Transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole ; and

(iv) the aggregate value of the Transactions for the year ended
31 March 2014 has not exceeded the maximum aggregate
annual value.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued their unqualified
letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect of
the continuing connected transactions in accordance with Rule
14A.38 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been
provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.
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Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Save as the transactions disclosed in the section headed
“Continuing Connected Transactions”, no contract of significance
to the Group’s business to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

Directors’ Service Contracts

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within
one year without payment of compensation, other than normal
statutory compensation.

Pre-emptive Rights
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws and the laws in Bermuda.

Bank Loans
Particulars of bank loans of the Group at 31 March 2014 are set
out in note 20 to the financial statements.

Five-year Group Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 139 of the
annual report.

Investment Properties
Particulars of the investment properties of the Group are shown
on page 140 of the annual report.

Retirement Scheme

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees in Hong Kong under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. Particulars
of the MPF Scheme are set out in note 21 to the financial
statements.

Employees engaged by the Group outside Hong Kong are covered
by appropriate local defined contribution retirement schemes
pursuant to the local labour rules and regulations.
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Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the
Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent.

Auditor

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as
auditor of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.
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The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Fairwood Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) is committed to achieving high standards of
corporate governance practices to safeguard the interests of
shareholders and to enhance corporate value and accountability.

The Company has complied with the code provisions as set out
in the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report (the “CG Code"”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
throughout the year ended 31 March 2014, save and except that
the Chairman and/or Managing Director (Chief Executive Officer)
of the Company are not subject to retirement by rotation and the
date on which the policy concerning diversity of board members
was adopted, details of which and the reasons for the deviation
are stated below.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules for securities
transactions by the Directors of the Company (the “Directors”).
Following specific enquiry by the Company, all Directors confirmed
their compliance with the required standards set out in the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2014.

Board of Directors

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested
in the Board, which assumes the responsibility for leadership
and control of the Company and is collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising its affairs. All Directors have taken decisions objectively
in the interests of the Company and its shareholders at all times.
The Board recognizes that corporate governance should be the
collective responsibility of all Directors, as such, it has adopted
terms of reference for corporate governance functions that are in
line with the CG Code.

The Board undertakes responsibility for decision making in major
matters of the Company, including the approval and monitoring
of all policy matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal
control, financial information, appointment of directors and other
significant financial and operational matters.
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Board of Directors (continued)

All Directors have been consulted on all major and material
matters of the Company. With the advice and services of the
Company Secretary, the Executive Chairman seeks to ensure
that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at Board
meetings and receive adequate and reliable information in a timely
manner. Directors may choose to take independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expenses,
upon making request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation
of the Company are delegated to the Executive Committee
which comprises the three Executive Directors and the senior
management of the Company. The delegated functions and work
tasks are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from
the Board prior to any significant transactions entered into by the
above-mentioned officers.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises the following
Directors:

Executive Directors

Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (Executive Chairman)
Chan Chee Shing (Chief Executive Officer)
Mak Yee Mei

Non-executive Director
Ng Chi Keung

Independent Non-executive Directors (“INED(s)")
Joseph Chan Kai Nin

Peter Lau Kwok Kuen

Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo

Peter Wan Kam To

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Board at all times met
the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of at least three INEDs with at least one INED possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. The representation of INEDs is
more than one third of the Board. A list containing the names of
the Directors with their roles and functions has been published
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
Biographical details of all Directors are set out on pages 15 to 18
of this annual report. There is no relationship among directors of
the Board and in particular, between the Executive Chairman and
the Chief Executive Officer.
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Board of Directors (continued)

The Company has received from each of the INED an annual
confirmation in writing of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. Furthermore, the Board is not aware of
any relationship or circumstances which would interfere with the

11 R NN wz%iﬁﬁqi#ﬁﬁ§$i’:jﬁﬁ exercise of the independent judgment of the INEDs. Accordingly,
S e the Company considers that all the INEDs are independent.
R-ZB—WE=A=+—HIFFERN - #£E8 Four full Board meetings were held during the year ended 31
TTNARREEees  GESEHMHE  March 2014 and attendance record of each Director is set out
ROERIAT : below:
HERE SRR
Number of meetings attended/held
HITES Executive Directors
BEB(RTTERE) Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (Executive Chairman) 4/4
BRAERK (7T ABZL) Chan Chee Shing (Chief Executive Officer) 4/4
BEPR Mak Yee Mei 4/4
FHITES Non-executive Director
RER Ng Chi Keung 4/4
BYFHITES Independent Non-executive Directors
PREESE Joseph Chan Kai Nin 4/4
2= Peter Lau Kwok Kuen 4/4
BREx Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo 4/4
FIRE Peter Wan Kam To 4/4
FIBEEFHARHETE - BMTXARM  All Directors well understand their responsibilities to present
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a balanced, clear and understandable assessment of annual
and interim reports, price-sensitive announcements and other
disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements. The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparing financial statements which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group. The statement of the auditor
of the Company about their reporting responsibilities on the
financial statements of the Company is set out on pages 44 and
45 in the independent auditor’s report. The Directors, having
made appropriate enquiries, confirm that there are no material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast doubt
upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, all Directors have
participated in continuous professional development activities
either by attending training courses or by reading materials to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills on the roles,
functions and skills of a director of a listed corporation.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company are
Messrs Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung and Chan Chee Shing respectively
whose roles are segregated and are not exercised by the same
individual.

Code provision A.4.2 of the CG Code stipulates that every
director, including those appointed for a specific term, should
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years; however, the Chairman and the Managing Director of the
Company are not subject to retirement by rotation under the Bye-
laws of the Company (the “Bye-laws”). The Board considers that
the exemption of both the Chairman and the Managing Director
(the Chief Executive Officer) of the Company from such retirement
by rotation provisions would provide the Group with strong
and consistent leadership, efficient use of resources, effective
planning, formulation and implementation of long-term strategies
and business plans. The Board believes that it would be in the
best interest of the Company for such Directors to continue to be
exempted from retirement by rotation provisions.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The Board is empowered under the Bye-laws to appoint any
person as a director of the Company either to fill a casual vacancy
or as an addition to the Board. Procedures for shareholders to
propose a person for election as a director are available at the
website of the Company.

According to the Bye-laws, (i) new Directors appointed by the
Board during the year shall hold office until the first annual
general meeting after their appointment and shall then be eligible
for re-election; and (ii) at each annual general meeting, one-
third of the Directors (other than any Director holding office as
Chairman or Managing Director) for the time being or, if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number
nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office
provided that each Director (other than any Director holding office
as Chairman or Managing Director) including those appointed for
a specific term shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years.

Currently, all Non-executive Directors are appointed for a specific
term of three years, subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election by the shareholders in accordance with the Bye-laws.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises two INEDs, Dr Peter Lau
Kwok Kuen and Mr Peter Wan Kam To. Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung
is the chairman of the Nomination Committee. The written terms
of reference of the Nomination Committee are in line with the
CG Code and available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board, identifies and
recommends to the Board suitable candidate(s) to stand for
election by shareholders at annual general meeting, or when
necessary, to fill vacancies on the Board.

Code provision A.5.6 of the CG Code stipulates that the
nomination committee should have a policy concerning diversity
of board members, and should disclose the policy or a summary
of it in the corporate governance report with effect from 1
September 2013. Since the Nomination Committee was of the
view that more time was required to formulate such policy, the
Board Diversity Policy was adopted by the Board in March 2014.

Under the policy, appointment of Board members will be made
on merit with due regard of benefits of having differences in
the skills, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, gender and age and other qualities of directors.
The Board believes that the Board Diversity Policy will promote
effective decision-making and better governance and allow the
Board to consider a wider range of options and solutions to
corporate issues.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, one Nomination
Committee meeting was held to review the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience)
of the Board; to assess the independence of INEDs and to
make recommendations to the Board on the re-appointment of
directors.
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Nomination Committee (continued)
The attendance record of each member is as follows:

HERE,EHEAH
Number of meetings attended/held

HITES Executive Director

BFRB(EE) Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (Chairman) 11

BYKHITES Independent Non-executive Directors

2)|BR 4 Peter Lau Kwok Kuen (Al

FERH Peter Wan Kam To 11
FHERE Remuneration Committee
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The Remuneration Committee comprises two INEDs, Mr Joseph
Chan Kai Nin and Dr Peter Lau Kwok Kuen and one Non-
executive Director, Mr Ng Chi Keung. Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin
is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee. Remuneration
Committee adopts written terms of reference that are in line with
the CG Code and are available on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration
policy and structure for all Directors and members of senior
management and other related matters.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Remuneration
Committee met once to review the remuneration of Directors and

IRk B ERCERNT the attendance record of each member is as follows:
HERE,&E K E
Number of meetings attended/held
BYFHITES Independent Non-executive Directors
BRESEE (/) Joseph Chan Kai Nin (Chairman) 11
2Rk Peter Lau Kwok Kuen 11
FHITES Non-executive Director
RE5R Ng Chi Keung 11
KIFEEEERAA

FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises one Non-executive Director, Mr
Ng Chi Keung and three INEDs, Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin, Mr Tony
Tsoi Tong Hoo and Mr Peter Wan Kam To. The Audit Committee
is chaired by Mr Peter Wan Kam To and meets at least twice a
year with the Company’s auditor.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include reviewing the
financial statements and reports and considering any significant
or unusual items raised by the qualified accountant, internal
auditor or external auditors before submission to the Board for
approval. It is also responsible for reviewing the scope and nature
of the external audit and the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company'’s financial reporting system, internal control system and
risk management system and associated procedures. The Audit
Committee has written terms of reference which are in line with
the CG Code and are available on websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, two Audit Committee
meetings were held to review the interim and annual financial
statements of the Company; to review the remuneration of
external auditors; to discuss with the external auditors their
independence and the nature and scope of the audit; to review
the internal audit programme, findings and management’s
responses; and to evaluate the system of internal controls and risk
management of the Group.

The attendance record of each member is as follows:

HERE, EBRB
Number of meetings attended/held

BYFBITES
FENE(EE)
BRESAF

ERZ

FHTES
R0

Independent Non-executive Directors

Peter Wan Kam To (Chairman) 2/2
Joseph Chan Kai Nin 2/2
Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo 2/2

Non-executive Director
Ng Chi Keung 2/2
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Auditor’s Remuneration

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the fees paid/payable to
the auditor in respect of audit and non-audit services provided by
the auditor of the Company were as follows:

x|

Amount

BT T

PR E Nature of services HK$'000

—E—=F /T NERHEEENE Review fee for 2013/14 interim results 514

—E—=F T NERFEERZE Audit fee for 2013/14 final results 2,936
BIERMTE S BRI FF AR Non-audit services which covered provision

of tax compliance services 293

48 Total 3,743
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Ms Mak Yee Mei is the Company Secretary and Executive Director
of the Company. As the Company Secretary, Ms Mak supports the
Board by ensuring good information flow within the Board and
the Board procedures and all applicable law, rules and regulations
are followed. During the year ended 31 March 2014, she
undertook not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

Internal Controls

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a sound and
effective internal control system of the Group. The Group's internal
control system includes a well defined management structure
with limits of authority which is designed for the achievement of
business objectives, safeguard assets against unauthorized use or
disposition, ensure maintenance of proper books and records for
the provision of reliable financial information for internal use or
publication, and to ensure compliance with relevant legislations
and regulations. The Board conducts regular reviews of the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control system.

Investor Relations and Communication

The Company continues to pursue a proactive policy of promoting
investor relations and communication. Designated Executive
Directors and senior management maintain regular dialogue with
institutional investors and analysts to keep them abreast of the
Company'’s developments. Enquiries from investors are dealt with
in an informative and timely manner.
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Investor Relations and Communication (continued)

The Board also welcomes the views of shareholders on matters
affecting the Group and encourages them to attend shareholders’
meetings to communicate any concerns they might have with the
Board or management directly.

All Directors had attended the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 11 September 2013 with the attendance record
as follows:

HERY, ERRY

Number of meetings attended/held

HITES
RS (HTTEE)
BRESR (TTBA8EL)

BTk

FHUTES
REH

I TES
L
2imiz
REE
F

Executive Directors

Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (Executive Chairman) il
Chan Chee Shing (Chief Executive Officer) 171
Mak Yee Mei 11

Non-executive Director
Ng Chi Keung 11

Independent Non-executive Directors

Joseph Chan Kai Nin 11
Peter Lau Kwok Kuen 11
Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo 11
Peter Wan Kam To il

AR IR D - H AR A A G AR A B
REZERF  BRRBRAS LiIR2 24
BFMERRERESFEEAZEFHEBRAM

> o
X

ARAREFEUERIERRUERNRE
LAEF 75 VB 3 A B B A R E A 15
FERTETTEHERL

HREEXH

RN A ST AR A B A2 KA S AR B R B AR AR
ETIEN AR E R PrE) A8 - R-T—
ME=A=T—HLEFER  ARFHEHKE
XSS -

Procedures on how shareholders can convene a special general
meeting, put forward proposals at shareholders’ meetings and
propose a person for election as a director are also available at
Company'’s website for shareholders’ information.

As a channel to further promote effective communication, the
Company’s website is maintained to disseminate corporate
information and other relevant financial and non-financial
information electronically.

Constitutional Documents

The Company has published an up-to-date consolidated version
of its Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange. During the year ended
31 March 2014, there has been no change to these Company’s
constitutional documents.
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Fairwood Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Fairwood Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together “the Group”) set out on pages 46 to 138, which
comprise the consolidated and Company statements of financial
position as at 31 March 2014, the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 March 2014 and of the Group’s profit and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

26 June 2014
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Consolidated Income Statement

HE_Z-—MF=A=1T—RLEFREUABEIIR)
For the year ended 31 March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E—NF =%
2014 2013
B s Fr T
Note $'000 $'000
B Turnover 3(@a) 2,037,719 1,929,244
SHERA Cost of sales (1,761,424) (1,665,515)
ER Gross profit 276,295 263,729
H A Other revenue 4 4,792 3,507
Hib(E58) Fi5FE Other net (loss)/income 4 (6,425) 3,044
B W S W S RE Net gain on disposal of properties 12(g) - 14,365
HEER Selling expenses (27,885) (28,945)
THRER Administrative expenses (92,208) (94,456)
BT EERERE Impairment losses on fixed assets 12(d) (16,733) (4,342)
EMELEEE) B Valuation (loss)/gain on investment properties 12(b) (781) 9,048
R Profit from operations 137,055 165,950
A& A A Finance costs 5(a) (785) (865)
BRI A Profit before taxation 5 136,270 165,085
FR1S%L Income tax 6(a) (28,659) (25,616)
RAFREZRER Profit for the year attributable to
FEih A FEERF equity shareholders of the Company 107,611 139,469
FR2R Earnings per share 1
HAR Basic 85.7 1flicents 111.671licents
571 Diluted 84.81{licents 110.03fllicents

F552 F138A MM TEBAMIERER N —
o o ENARBEDEA R ENFIEH
BIAMIEE25(c) ©

The notes on pages 55 to 138 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of
the Company are set out in note 25(c).

RRWEEEHRAF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED



AETERBER
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

HE_ T MNF=A=+—RILFEABEITR)
For the year ended 31 March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E—NE =
2014 2013
B Fr T
Note $'000 $'000
AATERBR Profit for the year attributable to
FBiE AR FEERF equity shareholders of the Company 107,611 139,469
AFEEHMBREKE Other comprehensive income for the year
(BR%L&): (after tax): 10
T EE#H 715187 mIEH © Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
— BN BERIREYED — Surplus on revaluation of leasehold
FEE AEE LA land and buildings held for own use
BEYNE-HRRR reclassified to investment properties - 527
B1EAJEB 7473 Item that may be reclassified subsequently
BmA)EE - to profit or loss:
—ERE ARLME — Exchange differences on translation of financial
(TREDMBAR statements of the People’s Republic of
MR AEL =5 China (the “PRC") subsidiaries 1,271 439
1,271 966
AN B ERRR Total comprehensive income for the year
BiEAFEE2ME attributable to equity shareholders
&5t of the Company 108,882 140,435
FL5E F138E MM IB A B H®E A — The notes on pages 55 to 138 form part of these financial
B o statements.



nv_\/El\E\Zl-i%;lﬁsﬂ'%
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RZT—WF=A=+—H(ABEIIR)
At 31 March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E-NEF —T—=%F
2014 2013
B s Fx Tt
Note $'000 $'000
EREBEE Non-current assets
BEEEE Fixed assets 12(a)
—HEYE — Investment properties 57,329 58,110
—E % - HIRFIER — Other property, plant and equipment 339,600 368,110
—AgEHERFEB A — Interests in leasehold land held for own use
7+ A S under operating leases 7,039 7,251
403,968 433,471
[k Goodwill 13 1,001 1,001
BEfHeES Rental deposits paid 51,048 46,892
Hth g & E Other financial assets 15 8,826 =
RERIEEE Deferred tax assets 23(b) 1,957 2,045
466,800 483,409
RENEE Current assets
cass Inventories 16(a) 30,820 31,593
R Uit B R L A R U R Trade and other receivables 17 56,823 55,999
Hiv @& E Other financial assets 15 7,394 -
AT B AN EA R 18 Current tax recoverable 23(a) 54 10
SFITERME S Bank deposits and cash 18 326,058 290,992
421,149 378,594
wREEE Current liabilities
JESBR SR EL fh FE A 3R Trade and other payables 19 265,307 248,739
RITER Bank loans 20 9,852 5,077
FERT A AR TE Current tax payable 23(a) 10,034 10,749
A Provisions 24 8,575 8,953
293,768 273,518
REBEEFE Net current assets 127,381 105,076
BEHABERAREBERE Total assets less current liabilities 594,181 588,485

48 RRWEEEHRAF
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nv_\/EI\/E\ZI-i%;Iﬁsﬂv%
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RZT—NF=A=+—RH(ABEIIR)
At 31 March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E—NE =
2014 2013
s Fr FT
Note $°000 $'000
FERBEE Non-current liabilities

RITER Bank loans 20 11,065 20,917
REFIHAE Deferred tax liabilities 23(b) 14,984 13,867
Bk EES Rental deposits received 1,368 1,152
Al Provisions 24 31,502 32,850
58,919 68,786
EETFE NET ASSETS 535,262 519,699

EARNGEE Capital and reserves 25
%N Share capital 125,465 125,178
G Reserves 409,797 394,521
RS TOTAL EQUITY 535,262 519,699

‘RS

Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung

BITERE

Executive Chairman

EFIIBAMNMEBAT BRI —

Chan Chee Shing
1T AREL
Chief Executive Officer

SAZH/NBZEWFF Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26

The notes on pages 55 to 138 form part of these financial



B EE IR R

Statement of Financial Position
RZZT—HFE=A=+—H8(AEEIIR)
At 31 March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E—NE —T-=F
2014 2013
B s Fr Tt
Note $'000 $'000
EREBEE Non-current assets
KB R AR Interests in subsidiaries 14 408,721 381,366
R TE A E Deferred tax assets 23(b) 534 646
409,255 382,012
REVEE Current assets
JE Uk B 2R AN EL b LU R Trade and other receivables 17 170,224 92,910
IRITEARFIR S Bank deposits and cash 18 388 363
170,612 93,273
REBEE Current liabilities
A BR SRR EL A 3% Trade and other payables 19 166,836 73,992
REBEEFE Net current assets 3,776 19,281
EERE NET ASSETS 413,031 401,293
EARNHEE Capital and reserves 25
&N Share capital 125,465 125,178
G Reserves 287,566 276,115
AR TOTAL EQUITY 413,031 401,293

BN _T—UFEN

At RNBRELRF

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26

EIE: & June 2014.
Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung Chan Chee Shing
HITERE TTIARE,

Executive Chairman Chief Executive Officer

F55E F138E MM I B A 5 *xA — The notes on pages 55 to 138 form part of these financial
& o statements.
KFEEEERAA

FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED



meERBER
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE_ T MNF=A=+—RILFEABEITR)
For the year ended 31 March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

RRAEERREESD
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

LA
BEN
BR REE  EARE ERRE ERRE  REEN &%
Land and
buildings
Share Share Capital  Exchange revaluation  Retained
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
ik r oD I i r T I
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
R-E-—EMA-A At 1 April 2012 124,500 — 5414 2,975 24 367,709 500,839
HEZ-F-=F=B=1-H Changesin equity for year
LEENREED ended 31 March 2013
REREF Profit for the year - - - - - 139469 139,469
Hh2EEE Other comprehensive income 10 - - - 439 527 - 966
IEERANGES Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 439 527 139469 140,435
REFERIEBIZTHMRA  Shares issued under share option scheme 25(d)() 1,036 7,339 = = = = 8,375
TR Issue expenses = (51) - - - - (51)
LEEEHENRE Dividends approved in respect of
the previous year 25(c)(ii) - - - - - (97,623)  (97,623)
FEEEERMRE Dividends declared in respect of
the current year 25(c)() - - - - - (28786)  (28,786)
AR E RARR LD Equity-settled share-based transactions
REWNR S 5(b), 25(d)) - 1,29 (302) - - - 994
BEARSRH Repurchase of own shares
-BfEE ~ par value paid 25(cl)i) (358) - - - - - (358)
~EREENRFMA — premium and transaction costs paid 25(d)i) - (4,126) = = = = (4,126)
R-ZE-ZF=A=1+-H At31March2013 125,178 4,458 5112 3414 768 380,769 519,699
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e ER
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE_ZT-—MNF=A=+—RILEFEUABEITR)
For the year ended 31 March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

FAARERRELTD
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
1A
BEN
BE  ROBE EXBE EiRE EERE  REEN 2
Land and
buildings
Share Share Capital ~ Exchange revaluation  Retained
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
ok T r r i r r r
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
R-B-=ENA-H At 1 April 2013 125,178 4,458 5112 3,414 768 380,769 519,699
BE-Z-ME=B=+-A Changes in equity for year
LEENEZSD ended 31 March 2014
REFEH Profit for the year - - - - - 107611 107,611
Hh2EE Other comprehensive income 10 - - - 1,271 - - 1,271
FEE2ENEEE Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 1,271 - 107611 108882
REBERIEE% 0 Shares issued under share option scheme 25(d)(i) 946 6,698 - - - - 7,644
B7ER Issue expenses - (48) - - - - (48)
LEEEHENRE Dividends approved in respect of
the previous year 25(c)(ii) - - - - - (61,500)  (61,500)
FEEEERMRE Dividends declared in respect of
the current year 25(c)() - - - - - (28880)  (28,880)
INEREE R AR Equity-settled share-based transactions
RERNRS 5(b), 25(c) - 1,461 (1,446) - - - 15
[HERE ) Repurchase of own shares
-EfEE — par value paid 25(d)i) (659) - - - - - (659)
~BEERNRFHA — premium and transaction costs paid 25(d)i) - (9,891) - - - - (9,891)
RZB-NME=A=+-H At31March2014 125,465 2,678 3,666 4,685 768 398,000 535,262

FL5E FI138E MM IB A B H®A A — The notes on pages 55 to 138 form part of these financial
& o statements.

RREEEBRAE
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mERERER
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

HE_Z-—MF=A=1T—RLEFREUABEIIR)
For the year ended 31 March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E-mF —ZT-=F
2014 2013
iz Fr Fr Fr T
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BEE Operating activities
BRI A& Profit before taxation 136,270 165,085
BEEE : Adjustments for:
EEEENE Depreciation of fixed assets 5(c), 12(a) 75,940 74,646
MR ERE Amortisation of interests in leasehold land
BREMN A ERREE held for own use under operating leases 5(c), 12(a) 212 212
BT EAERERHE Impairment losses on fixed assets 12(d) 16,733 4,342
Hib WA EEE Impairment losses on other receivables 5(c) - 119
BAREEGABSEOEML Change in fair value of other finandial assets
SREENAABEED at fair value through profit or loss 5(a) 17 =
BAREEGABRSOEL Change in fair value of other financial liabilities
SRABNALEBEZD at fair value through profit or loss 5(a) (350) (313)
FIEER Interest expense 5(a) 964 1,178
FEHA Interest income 4 (4,792) (3,507)
B (&) /GHRRHE Provision for long service
PR & 2 payments (reversed)/made 24(a) (6,483) 2,605
HEMENRFE Net gain on disposal of properties 12(g) - (14,365)
REEMETEESETE Net loss on disposal of other fixed assets 4 15,007 4,657
REMERE(ER) /R Valuation loss/(gain) on investment properties 12(b) 781 (9,048)
WS R AR Equity-settled share-based payment expenses
AERNZ T 5(b) 15 994
EEELEBHNSEEA Operating profit before
changes in working capital 234,468 226,605
EEESNEE Changes in working capital:
FERD Decrease in inventories 773 1,890
BAASESEM Increase in rental deposits paid (6,831) (2,199)
FECAR TR A EL A IR Decrease/(increase) in trade and
mD,/ () other receivables 2,206 2,731)
e R SRANE A B S A Increase in trade and other payables 20,287 19,377
B SRS Increase in rental deposits received 335 303
BERRARESER Provision for long service payments utilised 24(a) (637) (705)
BEBBERAER Provision for reinstatement costs utilised 24(b) (1,729) (939)
REEEELNES Cash generated from operations 248,872 241,601
BHFE Interest received 4,438 3,662
BRFIE Interest paid (967) (1,178)
BRHIE Tax paid
—BENEERES — Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (28,187) (18,881)
—BAHEIHE ~ PRC tax paid - (6)
REEHEENALFELE Net cash generated from operating activities
carried forward 224,156 225,198
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mERERER
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

HE_Z-—MF=A=1T—RLEFREUABEIIR)
For the year ended 31 March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E-|mE =K
2014 2013
sk Fr Fr T T
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
RARERDEENREFE Net cash generated from operating activities
brought forward 224,156 225,198
RETE Investing activities
BALMSREENTK Payment for purchase of other financial assets (25,067) -
BE A & RIEEMSHE Proceeds from redemption of other financial assets 8,828 2,329
BAETEEMNK Payment for purchase of fixed assets (74,995) (98,660)
HEEMETEEMSHIEFE  Net proceeds from disposal of other fixed assets 56 51
HEMEMEFEEE Net proceeds from disposal of properties 12(q) - 20,341
RETDFANRETE Net cash used in investing activities (91,178) (75,939)
METE Financing activities
IBEBRIE 8317 Proceeds from shares issued under
RADETEFE share option scheme 25(d)(i) 7,644 8,375
BARMAEERNER Expenses incurred in connection with
the issue of shares (48) (51)
[ BB D3R Payment in relation to repurchase of shares 25(d)(ii) (10,550) (845)
BN Dividends paid 25(0) (90,380) (126,409)
BEFITER Repayment of bank loans (5,077) (5,024)
MEEHRANRLTE Net cash used in financing activities (98,411) (123,954)
BeNBLEEWEM Net increase in cash and cash
FE equivalents 34,567 25,305
RUA—BNBEENBLZEY Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April 290,992 265,306
ERSEHNE Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 499 381
R=A=t—HH Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March
RENREEEN 18 326,058 290,992

FES5E F1BANMEB AT BRKRN —

The notes on pages 55 to 138 form part of these financial
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Br IS SRR M EE

Notes to the Financial Statements

(BRIE=AEH

- BRIBLGBESIIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1

FREFHE

(a) EHREH

(b

~

AU BREEEBREBSTMAGEM
WFTA ERACE B BRELER]) (e
WeEEEANRIKE B GRS E
B (BB ERDFZE)NHEBEA
REETRAMBERE - A EHREKIN
FEBA RGN EREEZ K&
YR EB(RRIED) (5622F)
MIR11E76 287G N FEIF B FEl iR
B RE NBEERRETHENRE
I B 75 SR 3R P AN B R AR FE R bt B A R 4
BEEABERR(ABIEG) (£328)H
MEMELEE - AP BRERAFFE
(BAEBMAERSIABRRAR([BZFT])E
F AR ([ ERRADBEB TR
F e UL TRARBMEHWE QA5
[REE DEANEBSHBERME -

BEGEIAGEM TETHINEE
FIAKBEEM B REEL) - ELERE
AEBMARAE NS AR ERE
MK AR AT SR - EEAERBEEHN
0 E N YIAE RIS LT RIS RT R 2
IS ERMAE gt HENERS
AABREE - CRAMBERRARE -
BEREREIINHEE( -

PR B ERE
HE_T-NF=A=+t—HIFED
RAVBmEAREAREE -

BRI XSRS RERSBTRIN &R
AP BHREREZIANE LK AIERFE
i

1

Significant accounting policies

(a) Statement of compliance

(b

~

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, which for this financial
year and the comparative period continue to be those of the
predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), in
accordance with transitional and saving arrangements for Part
9 of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622),
“Accounts and Audit”, which are set out in sections 76 to 87
of Schedule 11 to that Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”)
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). A summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted by the Company and its subsidiaries (together
referred to as the “Group”) is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note 1(c)
provides information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments to
the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current
and prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2014 comprise the Group.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis except as otherwise
stated in the accounting policies set out below.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(BR3EZ AT - BAPHLUBEIIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1 EBERBEE) 1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(b) A BEMERMNEHEE(E) (b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(continued)

EEEFERENA(EBYBREE The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
AT BHREFELEHSTBED HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
JEA - AREEE BfF WA H and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
R5 R REERK R 2 M A - e AR reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
oo BLET AR R R BBBE ALK The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
BNMEEEREERBEARKESENS historical experience and various other factors that are
HEMEAEZRMELR  HERBXRT believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
EREEREANEMEE T EANEEHN of which form the basis of making the judgements about
BEMNKREEERTED A Ea &5 o carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
BEREREARIN G258 apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from

these estimates.

EREgREEMNSEATNEER The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
Feo IMREFHEFTNEIIRARTFER — on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
B HEEE g AR A®ER W\ recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
RZBEITHEMMRRBEE B the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
2 ATEVELHEET A BA R AN R 2R B revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
R o and future periods.
EHERERREA(EEVBREER) Judgements made by management in the application of
RATEE B A B mMEREEAZEN HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial statements
B ARFENGHFGBREIEERERN and major sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in
AR - HIIRMIEE2 o note 2.
() EFFBEERMNEE (c) Changes in accounting policies
BERGTTMAREM T ZEMA] REE The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and
A E BV BMERER]) - EEERE amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective for the current
AEARSEERARRNER T HEE accounting period of the Group and the Company. Of these,
IR o B BN 6 B B IS SRR AR R Y the following developments are relevant to the Group's
BEIT financial statements:
— (BEBGERDENTISET — [HER - Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial
FKAYZIHR — B Al 2 E 7 TE B 851 ) statements — Presentation of items of other comprehensive
income
— (BERMBHREENDE10% — [4F5 — HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements
B#HE]
— (BAMBRELNDE 13K -2 —  HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement
1BlEz 2]
— (BB MERA)DETRIEE] — [ # - Amendments to HKFRS 7 — Disclosures — Offsetting
FE-oHEEMSFH A B financial assets and financial liabilities

56 RRWEEEHRAF
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period.

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements —
Presentation of items of other comprehensive income

The amendments require entities to present separately
the items of other comprehensive income that would be
reclassified to profit or loss in the future if certain conditions
are met from those that would never be reclassified to profit
or loss. The presentation of other comprehensive income in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in these
financial statements has been modified accordingly.

HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

HKFRS 10 replaces the requirements in HKAS 27, Consolidated
and separate financial statements relating to the preparation
of consolidated financial statements and HK-SIC 12
Consolidation — Special purpose entities. It introduces a single
control model to determine whether an investee should be
consolidated, by focusing on whether the entity has power
over the investee, exposure or rights to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee and the ability to use its
power to affect the amount of those returns.

The adoption does not change any of the control conclusions
reached by the Group in respect of its involvement with other
entities as at 1 April 2013.

HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement

HKFRS 13 replaces existing guidance in individual HKFRSs with
a single source of fair value measurement guidance. HKFRS
13 also contains extensive disclosure requirements about fair
value measurements for both financial instruments and non-
financial instruments. To the extent that the requirements
are applicable to the Group, the Group has provided those
disclosures in notes 12 and 26.
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(BR3EZ AT - BAPHLUBEIIR)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 7 — Disclosures — Offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities

The amendments introduce new disclosures in respect of
offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities. Those new
disclosures are required for all recognised financial instruments
that are set off in accordance with HKAS 32, Financial
instruments. Presentation and those that are subject to an
enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement
that covers similar financial instruments and transactions,
irrespective of whether the financial instruments are set off in
accordance with HKAS 32.

The adoption of the amendments does not have an impact on
these financial statements because the Group has not offset
financial instruments, nor has it entered into master netting
arrangement or similar agreement which is subject to the
disclosures of HKFRS 7 during the periods presented.

(d) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 1(1)).
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(e) Goodwill

(f)

(9

~

Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred and the fair value of the Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and
liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated to
each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash-generating
units, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination and is tested annually for impairment (see note

100).

Held-to-maturity investment

Held-to-maturity investment represents debt security that
the Group has the positive ability and intention to hold to
maturity. This investment is initially stated at fair value, which
is their transaction price unless fair value can be more reliably
estimated using valuation techniques whose variables include
only data from observable markets. Cost includes attributable
transaction costs, except where indicated otherwise below
and it is subsequently stated at amortised cost less impairment
losses (see note 1(1)).

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair
value. At the end of each reporting period the fair value is
remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

(h) Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note 1(j)) to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation.
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(h) Investment properties (continued)

(i)

Investment properties are stated at fair value. Any gain or loss
arising from a change in fair value or from the retirement or
disposal of an investment property is recognised in the profit
or loss. Rental income from investment properties is accounted
for as described in note 1(t)(ii).

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating
lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
the interest is classified and accounted for as an investment
property on a property-by-property basis. Any such property
interest which has been classified as an investment property
is accounted for as if it were held under a finance lease (see
note 1(j)), and the same accounting policies are applied to that
interest as are applied for other investment properties leased
under finance leases. Lease payments are accounted for as
described in note 1()).

Other property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see note 1(1)):

— buildings held for own use which are situated on leasehold
land classified as held under operating leases (see note
1()); and

— other items of plant and equipment, except cutlery and
utensils (see below).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss on the
date of retirement or disposal.
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1)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Other property, plant and equipment (continued)
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings
situated thereon

30 - 50 years

The remaining term of
the tenancy leases

— Leasehold improvements

— Air-conditioning plant The remaining term of

the tenancy leases

— Furniture and equipment 10% — 20% per annum

— Motor vehicles 15% per annum

— Computer system 25% per annum

— Others 10% per annum
No depreciation is provided on initial purchases of cutlery
and utensils which are capitalised. Costs of subsequent
replacements are charged to profit or loss in the year when
the expenditure is incurred.

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any,
are reviewed annually.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of
a lease.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(j) Leased assets (continued)

0]

(ii)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as being held under finance
leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified
as operating leases, with the following exceptions:

— property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property is classified as an investment property on
a property-by-property basis and, if classified as
investment property, is accounted for as if held under
a finance lease (see note 1(h)); and

— land held for own use under an operating lease, the
fair value of which cannot be measured separately
from the fair value of a building situated thereon at
the inception of the lease, is accounted for as being
held under a finance lease, unless the building is
also clearly held under an operating lease. For these
purposes, the inception of the lease is the time that
the lease was first entered into by the Group, or taken
over from the previous lessee.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to
profit or loss in equal instalments over the accounting
periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern
of benefits to be derived from the leased asset. Lease
incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease
is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease term.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k) Trade and other receivables

0)

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value
and thereafter stated at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method less allowance for impairment of doubtful
debts (see note 1(I)), except where the receivables are interest-
free loans made to related parties without any fixed repayment
terms or the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In
such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts.

Impairment of assets

() Impairment of trade and other receivables and other
financial assets carried at amortised cost
Trade and other receivables and other financial assets
that are stated at amortised cost are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of
impairment includes observable data that comes to the
attention of the Group about one or more of the following
loss events:

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; and

— significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor.

If any such evidence exists, impairment loss of trade and
other receivables and other financial assets carried at
amortised cost is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition of these
assets), where the effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where these financial
assets share similar risk characteristics, such as similar past
due status, and have not been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets which are
assessed for impairment collectively are based on historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics
similar to the collective group.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(I) Impairment of assets (continued)

0]

(ii)

Impairment of trade and other receivables and other
financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which would
have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment losses
recognised in respect of trade debtors included within
trade and other receivables, whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the impairment
losses for doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group is satisfied that recovery is
remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is written
off against trade debtors directly and any amounts held in
the allowance account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged to
the allowance account are reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
directly are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to identify indications
that the following assets may be impaired or, except in the
case of goodwill, an impairment loss previously recognised
no longer exists or may have decreased:

property, plant and equipment;

— investments in subsidiaries; and

goodwill.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or not
there is any indication of impairment.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(I) Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Impairment of other assets (continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of
its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
cash-generating unit (or group of units) and then, to
reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the
unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs of disposal (if
measureable) or value in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is
not reversed.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited to profit or
loss in the year in which the reversals are recognised.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(m)Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighed average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period
in which the reversal occurs.

(n) Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortised cost with any difference between the amount
initially recognised and redemption value being recognised
in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the effective interest
method.

(o) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in
accordance with note 1(s)(i), trade and other payables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

(p) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(q) Employee benefits

0]

(ii)

Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at the grant date using the trinomial lattice
model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon
which the options were granted. Where the employees
have to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the total estimated
fair value of the options is spread over the vesting period,
taking into account the probability that the options will
vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to profit or loss for the year of the review, unless
the original employee expenses qualify for recognition as
an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve. On the vesting date, the amount recognised as an
expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of share
options that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the
capital reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not
achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market price
of the Company’s shares. The equity amount is recognised
in the capital reserve until either the option is exercised
(when it is transferred to the share premium account) or
the option expires (when it is released directly to retained
profits).
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(r) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable
profits that may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable temporary
differences, provided those differences relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in periods
into which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary differences
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
unused tax losses and credits, that is, those differences are
taken into account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(r) Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of
a business combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case
of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of
the reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(h), the
amount of deferred tax recognised is measured using the tax
rates that would apply on sale of those assets at their carrying
value at the reporting date unless the property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the property over time, rather than through sale. In all other
cases, the amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of
the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised.
Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred
tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:
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(r)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Income tax (continued)

in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered,
intend to realise the current tax assets and settle the
current tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.

(s) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities
(i) Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer
(i.e. the guarantor) to make specific payments to reimburse
the beneficiary to the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss
the holder incurs because a specific debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Where the Group or the Company issues a financial
guarantee, the fair value of the guarantee is initially
recognised as deferred income within trade and other
payables. The fair value of financial guarantees issued at
the time of issuance is determined by reference to fees
charged in an arm'’s length transaction for similar services,
when such information is obtainable, or is otherwise
estimated by reference to interest rate differentials, by
comparing the actual rates charged by lenders when the
guarantee is made available with the estimated rates that
lenders would have charged, had the guarantees not be
available, where reliable estimates of such information can
be made. Where consideration is received or receivable
for the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration
is recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition
of any deferred income.
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liabilities (continued)

(i) Financial guarantees issued (continued)
The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over the term
of the guarantee as income from financial guarantees
issued. In addition, provisions are recognised in accordance
with note 1(s)ii) if and when (i) it becomes probable that
the holder of the guarantee will call upon the Group under
the guarantee, and (ii) the amount of that claim on the
Group is expected to exceed the amount currently carried
in trade and other payables in respect of that guarantee
i.e. the amount initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation.

(i) Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

(t) Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i) Revenue arising from the sale of food and beverages
is recognised in profit or loss at the point of sale to
customers. Revenue is after deduction of any sale
discounts.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(t) Revenue recognition (continued)

(i) Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over the
periods covered by the lease term. Lease incentives granted
are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments receivable. Contingent
rentals are recognised as income in the accounting period
in which they are earned.

(iii) Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

(iv) Other income is recognised in profit or loss on an accrual
basis.

(u) Translation of foreign currencies

The functional currency of the Company and subsidiaries
which operate in Hong Kong is Hong Kong dollars while that
for subsidiaries which operate in the PRC is Renminbi. The
presentation currency of the Group is Hong Kong dollars.

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.

The results of operations outside Hong Kong are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Statement of financial position items are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity
in the exchange reserve.
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(u) FhEsIaE (42) (u) Translation of foreign currencies (continued)
ERARAREDTBRINEBEENER On disposal of operations outside Hong Kong, the cumulative
- B XA R ELEZEEH amount of the exchange differences relating to that operation
EmENOERER - is reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or

loss on disposal is recognised.

(v) EERA (v) Borrowing costs
BEKAIREEBRESIZ Borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.
(w) BB 5 (w) Related parties
(1) WEAT AL - BIZALTSHEZATH (1) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
MRS B related to the Group if that person:
(i) PEHISHERZEGIRER (i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) BAKEEEERTLES 3K (i) has significant influence over the Group; or
(i) EAKBEHAEEE A RIAER (iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the
BEAER - Group or the Group's parent.
() WFE THMERGEY - BMEEERE (2) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
REE R FERE T - conditions applies:
() ZERBEASERER—5E (i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
(AIEBAE - WBRARMEZR group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
B A R L B ) o fellow subsidiary is related to the others).
iy —" REBRS—ERBNBEAT (i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
FEErE(HS—EBES entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of
EETKE AR EARIRE a group of which the other entity is a member).
==
(i) MRBRBER—F=T0&aED (iii) both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.
% o
(V) " REERE=ZFETENEZED (iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
¥ MmMr—EBERBEE=7EEN other entity is an associate of the third entity.
/NI
v) ZERBERASEIIEALNEE (v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
B TR EBRESRANM benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity

REVBERIEBAIGTE - related to the Group.
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(w) Related parties (continued)

(x)

(2) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (continued)
(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (1).

(vii)a person identified in (1)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group's
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

Accounting judgements and estimates

Notes 13, 22 and 26 contain information about the
assumptions and their risk factors relating to goodwill
impairment, fair value of share options granted and financial
instruments. Other key sources of estimation uncertainty are
as follows:
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Accounting judgements and estimates (continued)
Impairment of fixed assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to assess whether there
is any indication that a fixed asset may be impaired. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the fixed
asset is estimated. Changes in facts and circumstances may
result in revisions to the conclusion of whether an indication
of impairment exists and revised estimates of recoverable
amounts, which would affect profit or loss in future years.

Depreciation

Fixed assets other than cutlery and utensils are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
the assets. The Group reviews the estimated useful lives of
the assets regularly in order to determine the amount of
depreciation expense to be recorded during any reporting
period. The useful lives are based on the Group's historical
experience with similar assets. The depreciation expense for
future periods is adjusted if there are material changes from
previous estimates.

Valuation of investment properties

As described in note 12(b), the investment properties are
stated at fair value based on the valuation performed by an
independent firm of professional surveyors after taking into
consideration the net rental income allowing for reversionary
income potential.

In determining the fair value, the surveyors have based on a
method of valuation which involves certain estimates including
current market rents for similar properties in the same location
and condition and expected future market rents. In relying
on the valuation report, the management has exercised their
judgement and are satisfied that the method of valuation is
reflective of the current market condition.
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Accounting judgements and estimates (continued)

(d) Hong Kong Profits Tax and PRC taxes

(e)

(f)

The Group is subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax and PRC
taxes. Judgement is required in determining the provision
for such taxes. There are transactions during the ordinary
course of business, for which calculation of the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain. Where the final tax outcome is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the tax provisions in the year in which
such determination is made.

Recognition of deferred tax assets depends on the
management’s expectation of future taxable profit that will
be available against which the tax losses can be utilised. The
outcome of their actual utilisation may be different.

Provision for long service payments

As explained in note 24(a), the Group makes provision for
long service payments in accordance with the requirement of
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The Group has based
the estimation on its recent employees’ statistics and adopted
certain assumptions in assessing the provision for long service
payments. It is possible that these assumptions adopted by
the Group in assessing the provision for long service payments
may not be indicative of the future situation. Any increase or
decrease in the provision would affect profit or loss in future
years.

Provision for reinstatement costs

As explained in note 24(b), the Group makes provision
for reinstatement costs based on the best estimate of the
expected costs to be incurred upon expiry of the respective
rental agreements, which are subject to uncertainty and might
differ from the actual costs incurred. Any increase or decrease
in the provision would affect profit or loss in future years.
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3 Turnover and segment reporting
(a) Turnover

The principal activities of the Group are operation of fast food
restaurants and property investments.

Turnover represents the sales value of food and beverages sold
to customers and rental income. An analysis of turnover is as
follows:

—E-IF —T=F

2014 2013

F T

$'000 $'000

R R misE Sale of food and beverages 2,032,794 1,924,910
LJES kA Property rental 4,925 4,334
2,037,719 1,929,244

ERAEETBEBNE—SHERE
e

(b) /'\ﬁBi&d:
AEEEBMED I (NEBERLTE
BR)REERR  WIRRMEREE D
EMEDE - AEEEHETE T A TNME
BEDH FHEHMHIABLAEERS
BITHEEABRARHREFRMEER
(AEETER D B MRIRFFE )T
A= o REERB EFRRBEKIA TR

LI MBETEHTERNEEDEL -

- BRER  ADHEBERERE
EO

— TEERE AoBETELERE
JE o

Hip D mELRZNEZRENEED
¥HE YEBREARER-

Further details regarding the Group’s principal activities are
disclosed below:

(b) Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by two divisions, namely
Hong Kong restaurants and PRC restaurants, which are
organised by geographical location. In a manner consistent
with the way in which information is reported internally to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the purposes
of resource allocation and performance assessment, the
Group has identified the following two reportable segments.
No operating segments have been aggregated to form the
following reportable segments.
— Hong Kong restaurants:  this segment operates fast food
restaurants in Hong Kong.

— PRC restaurants: this segment operates fast food
restaurants in the PRC.

Other segments generate profits mainly from leasing of
investment properties and include corporate expenses.
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3 Turnover and segment reporting (continued)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)
(i) Segment results

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s most
senior executive management monitors the results to each
reportable segment on the following bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to revenue generated by those
segments and expenses incurred by those segments
or which otherwise arise from the depreciation or
amortisation of assets attributable to those segments.

Performance is measured based on segment profit before
taxation. Items not specifically attributable to individual
segments are not allocated to the reporting segments.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning
segment profit, management is provided with segment
information concerning revenue (including inter-segment
revenue) and cost of sales (including food cost, labour
cost, rent and rates and depreciation). The inter-segment
transactions were conducted on normal commercial terms
and were priced with reference to prevailing market prices
and in the ordinary course of business.

Segment assets information is not reported or used by the
Group’s most senior executive management.



3 BEXURSBEE(E) 3 Turnover and segment reporting (continued)

(b) DEIRE (&) (b) Segment reporting (continued)

() 7DEFEEE) (i) Segment results (continued)
BE_ZT—UFR-T—=F=-H= Information regarding the Group's reportable segments
T-HIEFERETASERSETT as provided to the Group's most senior executive
HERABRED BB RN E DS management for the purposes of resource allocation and
KRN AEERESHERAT - assessment of segment performance for the years ended

31 March 2014 and 2013 is set out below.

ERRE TERE Rfpa s L
Hong Kong restaurants PRC restaurants Other segments Total

“E-mF ZB-=F CE-MF Z3-=fF 2 ZF-=F “E-NF —T-=F
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Fr i Fr i Fr i Fr i
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 §'000 §'000 $'000 §'000

RENBRP Revenue from

il external customers 1,865,168 1,732,814 167,626 192,096 4,925 4334 2,037,719 1,929,244
REEMHH Inter-segment
ol ON revenue - - - - 4,761 5,050 4,761 5,050
HEDHRA Reportable segment
revenue 1,865,168 1,732,814 167,626 192,096 9,686 9,384 2,042,480 1,934,294
HEDH Reportable segment
wE/ (B1B) profit/(loss) 159,764 134,664 (14,218) 4,078 8,059 6,959 153,605 145,701
MEHA Interest income 4,351 3,036 441 471 - - 4,792 3,507
FITER Interest expense
MSER on bank loans 964 1,178 - - - = 964 1,178
FEMNEH Depreciation and
amortisation 66,208 64,075 8,936 9,651 1,008 1,132 76,152 74,858
EEEE Impairment losses on
HEER fixed assets 4,102 2435 12,631 1,907 - - 16733 4,342

H sy Impairment losses on
HEER other receivables - 119 - - - - - 119




30

B ISER AR =

Notes to the Financial Statements

(BR3EZ AT - BAPHLUBEIIR)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

3 ERERSBEE(E)
(b) D EBERE ()
(if) 577 B T H R

3 Turnover and segment reporting (continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued)
(i) Reconciliations of reportable segment profit

—E-NmF —E=F
2014 2013
Fx Tt
$'000 $'000
= F Profit
BB AT R 9 B A Reportable segment profit before taxation 153,605 145,701
HEYE W TR Net gain on disposal of properties - 14,365
BARBESABREA Change in fair value of other financial assets
TREENAREBEY at fair value through profit or loss (171) =
BAREBEGABEE A Change in fair value of other financial liabilities
SHBENAREEZS) at fair value through profit or loss 350 313
REYEGEER) B Valuation (loss)/gain on investment properties (781) 9,048
EE & ERESE Impairment losses on fixed assets (16,733) (4,342)
FR AR ATAR S Al Consolidated profit before taxation 136,270 165,085
(iii) HblE EFY (iii) Geographic information

TRIMBBOANKERE IR
FR U B i) 74 5 [ ) [ 7 8 E e
(THERESEREEE ) PRI EHY
BRI R R AR H RS E
mHIE S D - MERIEEIFRBE
EETHETEE - HMTEi2Re
ZEENEEREMEE D mER
BEFRBDEEETHNEE - HF
T BHZ IR EL P 0 L = 10 & & 1 Bh

The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group’s revenue from
external customers and (i) the Group'’s fixed assets and
goodwill (“specified non-current assets”). The geographical
location of customers is based on the location at which
the services were provided or the goods delivered. The
geographical location of the specified non-current assets
is based on the physical location of the assets in the case
of fixed assets, and the location of the operation to which

E={a they are allocated in the case of goodwill.
REMBEF WA EEFRBEE
Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
—EF-mE ZT-=fF —EF-0mF ZT=F
2014 2013 2014 2013
Fr Fit Fr Tt
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
B (M) Hong Kong (place of domicile) 1,866,260 1,733,579 320,835 330,699
il The PRC 171,459 195,665 84,134 103,773
2,037,719 1,929,244 404,969 434,472
RIREEBER D E

FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED



4 HMEAT(EE) FRSSHE 4 Other revenue and net (loss)/income

—E-DmF —Z2—=F
2014 2013
T Tt
$'000 $'000
HAhA Other revenue
F B U A Interest income 4,792 3,507
Hith(&58) Fri8FHE Other net (loss)/income
REHMETEEESEFHE Net loss on disposal of other fixed assets (15,007) (4,657)
bE AR F Net foreign exchange gain 875 640
BERRRERS Electric and gas range incentives 4,028 5,049
IS RS e A Profit on sale of redemption gifts 909 683
RPRILTHERNEE Compensation received from a landlord upon
FrUCER Y (8 early termination of a tenancy lease 757 =
HAt Others 2,013 1,329
(6,425) 3,044
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5 FRIRAIET
BRBADRMENGR,(GTA):

5 Profit before taxation

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

—E-mE —E=F
2014 2013
Frx FiT
$'000 $'000
(a) RERA (a) Finance costs
BAREBESABENE( Change in fair value of other financial assets
CREENAREEE at fair value through profit or loss 171 =
BEARBEGSABREA Change in fair value of other financial liabilities
SRBENAREEES at fair value through profit or loss (350) (313)
IRITERFEER Interest expense on bank loans 964 1,178
785 865
(b) BIRA (b) Staff costs
AERFERRGTEISERK Contributions to defined contribution retirement plan 25,469 24,035
A A E R LARD & Equity-settled share-based
EReZ A payment expenses 15 994
e ITEREMER Salaries, wages and other benefits 547,216 517,254
572,700 542,283
() HfwiEE (c) Other items
FERA(FEE) Cost of inventories (note) 541,053 515,742
EEEENTE Depreciation of fixed assets 75,940 74,646
NS ERMER AR Amortisation of interests in leasehold land
TR E R e i held for own use under operating leases 212 212
H b WA E &S Impairment losses on other receivables - 119
ZEREN < Auditor’s remuneration 3,450 3,349
MRS EHEER Operating lease charges on properties
—REBE R — Minimum lease payments 292,313 281,896
—skEH® — Contingent rentals 14,731 14,519
JEWAE & Rental receivable
—REMFREES N — Investment properties, less direct
181,000 (ZE—= outgoings of $181,000
£ 1 304,0007T) (2013: $304,000) (3,652) (3,264)
—HiM@aEmE — Other operating sub-leases (1,092) (766)
HEFRINEAER Cost of subsequent replacement of cutlery
gR A & and utensils 10,008 8,515

MIEE - FERAZERYIKA -

RRWEEEHRAF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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6 FEBRRMTHMRER 6

Income tax in the consolidated income statement

(a) HEWERFIRIWBIES : (a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement represents:
—E-mEF —E-=F
2014 2013
Fr Tt
$'000 $'000
REABIE — B BFEBH Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax
NG Pl Provision for the year 27,462 24,553
A FEEERT Over-provision in respect of prior years (26) (1,584)
27,436 22,969
AHABIE — Current tax — PRC
A FEEERTE Over-provision in respect of prior years (8) (101)
IEFEBLE (MiEE23(b)) Deferred tax (note 23(b))
B R E ENEE Origination and reversal of temporary differences 1,231 2,748
28,659 25,616

—E—NEFEEMNETEFNEHEEKEA
FEMAFETRETIA16.5% (ZF—
=% 1 16.5% )T EETE -

HRAEE P EEBFRRSES -
Rt B A R - T —NFEPREEEAM
BUEE -

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2014 is calculated
at 16.5% (2013: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits
for the year.

No provision has been made for PRC corporate income tax
for 2014 as the Group's PRC operations sustained a loss for
taxation purpose during the year.
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6 HFEeWBFXMTHFRER(E) 6 Income tax in the consolidated income statement
(continued)
(b) EBEBXHMEHERNIRBEABEFERN  (b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting
HER profit at applicable tax rates:
—ZT—mF —T—=F
2014 2013
T FT
$'000 $'000
B AR T Profit before taxation 136,270 165,085
BHB16.5% (=T —=4F : Notional Hong Kong Profits Tax calculated
16.5% )T R ETEH) at 16.5% (2013:16.5%)
BEBBHEH 22,485 27,239
AR THUNEERGEHHE  Effect of different tax rate of subsidiaries
UNGIE S RN TR )7 operating in another tax jurisdiction 69 500
ARIHIE S H AR T R 2 Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 2,314 1,444
BAFRBRANKRIETZ Tax effect of non-taxable income (241) (1,916)
KREERHAFEARAIEMFIE  Tax effect of unused tax losses not recognised
BREATIATE 4,032 =
RERNEMERFER Tax effect of other temporary differences
M2 not recognised 34 34
LAEFEEFEBE Over-provision in respect of prior years (34) (1,685)
BERFHIES Actual tax expense 28,659 25,616
KIFEEEBRAA



7 EEE& 7 Directors’ remuneration

IREFT O BEBCR ARG (F622F ) ik Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 78 of
1158781& » W2 RBIRKHEB(RA AHE Schedule 11 to the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
By (328 ) FE161EY| BB E S 10 (Cap. 622), with reference to section 161 of the predecessor
N Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32) is as follows:
e 28 URA A BifGHE —E-mE
Eshe AENAE ML ERNZA % ot
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors' and benefits Discretionary ~ Share-based scheme 2014
fee inkind bonus  payments contributions Total
r T T r r T
$000 $'000 $'000 $000 $'000 $'000
(i)
(note)
HES Executive Directors
BREGTE Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung 170 4,860 2,994 - 15 8,039
BREM AL Mr Chan Chee Shing 150 1,79 2,246 38 15 4,245
BlaNA Ms Mak Yee Mei 150 1,463 749 34 15 2,411
FHnES Non-executive Director
RERTE Mr Ng Chi Keung 180 - - - - 180
BUFHTES Independent Non-executive Directors
REFSE Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin 190 - - - - 190
BIEEET Dr Peter Lau Kwok Kuen 170 - - - - 170
BRSRAE Mr Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo 170 - - - - 170
FRBEE Mr Peter Wan Kam To 240 - - - - 240

1,420 8,119 5,989 72 45 15,645
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7 EEMeE)

7 Directors’ remuneration (continued)

e 2 DERE  RKHE —B-=F
Bz ANEMAE  BERL EReORA #% &%
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors'  and benefits ~ Discretionary  Share-based scheme 2013
fee inkind bonus payments  contributions Total
So i i 7 i i
$000 §'000 $'000 $000 §'000 $'000
(FitzE)
(note)
HiTES Executive Directors
ERmTE Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung 140 4,680 3,049 - 15 7,884
RER A Mr Chan Chee Shing 120 1,728 2,87 92 15 4,242
Rl MA Ms Mak Yee Mei 120 1329 764 57 15 2,285
FHITES Non-executive Director
RERTE Mr Ng Chi Keung 150 - - - - 150
BUFHITES Independent Non-executive Directors
BREEF S Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin 160 = - = = 160
2R+ Dr Peter Lau Kwok Kuen 140 - - - - 140
ERREE Mr Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo 140 - - - - 140
FREEE Mr Peter Wan Kam To 210 - - - - 210
1,180 1,737 6,100 149 45 15,211
BT Note:

PR 7 B ER S RIERIBA R RIH B
BB TESERENGEEER  SLB
Pk BE R AL IR M RE 1 (o)) P& DI AR S E LA
BOREROINRZNETERRTE - A
REZHERE - B2 YIS SMEAHEL
WHETREETARENTFERNER
BRI REE -

BERELENMENFE  BEMAETRER
BOTBRGERNBE  SREFSRETE
Pt 8l | —ERABHRE22/A

RRWEEEHRAF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

Share-based payments represent the estimated value of share options
granted to the Directors under the Company’s share option scheme.
The value of these share options is measured according to the
Group's accounting policies for share-based payment transactions as
set out in note 1(g)(ii) and, in accordance with that policy, includes
adjustments to reverse amounts accrued in previous years where
grants of equity instruments are forfeited prior to vesting.

Details of these benefits in kind, including the principal terms and
number of options granted, are disclosed under the paragraph “Share
Option Scheme” in the Report of the Directors and note 22.



8 mEM&AL 8 Individuals with highest emoluments

EhfilemaALTH = (ZF— Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three
=F:=M)AESE FHENNESFIEE (2013: three) are Directors whose emoluments are disclosed
7 o HERRGL(ZZE— =4 : mfL) in note 7. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the
ANTHBNEBEEnT other two individuals (2013: two individuals) is as follows:
-7 —z-=f
2014 2013
F5 F5
$'000 $'000
e REMMES Salaries and other emoluments 2,576 3,111
LARR AR B E R Ay 2 A+t Share-based payments 205 539
RIRET IR Retirement scheme contributions 30 29
2,811 3,679
M (ZZE—=%F W) Meza AL The emoluments of the two individuals (2013: two individuals)
NS AT EENR : with the highest emoluments are within the following bands:
—ZE—NE —T-=F
2014 2013
AE A
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
=752 1,000,0007T $0 - $1,000,000 - -
1,000,0017C % 1,500,0007T $1,000,001 — $1,500,000 1 1
1,500,0017C22,000,0007T $1,500,001 — $2,000,000 1 -
2,000,0017C2%2,500,0007T $2,000,001 — $2,500,000 - i
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9 FATFEGBRELRF

AARIEZBEELGEE RN BE—
EERARAIFERREENEF
105,057,00070( =& — =% : 110,309,000
JC) °

10 FEHM2ZENLS
HASHM2EWRERERT I E@BIH
BiESE .

9 Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company
The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company includes a profit of $105,057,000 (2013:
$110,309,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.

10 Consolidated other comprehensive income
Tax effects relating to each component of consolidated
other comprehensive income:

—E-mF ZT-=F
2014 2013
BRASE BEXH REESE RUAeE HEXY RikeE
Before-tax Tax  Net-of-tax  Before-tax Tax  Net-of-tax
amount expense amount amount expense amount
% fx fx  Fr ¥R IR
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BERENBAR Exchange differences on translation of
BBRENELEE financial statements of the PRC subsidiaries 1,271 - 1,271 439 - 439
EFHEAREMER  Surplus on revaluation of leasehold land
BEERBEE A and buildings held for own use
BEMNERRS reclassified to investment properties - - - 887 (360) 527
AEELEE Consolidated other comprehensive
2EME income for the year 1,271 - 1,271 1,326 (360) 966
11 SBREFH 11 Earnings per share

(a) BREXREF
BREARFRIZBAN G L BEER
fi% 3R B % F1107,611,0000( = — =
F :139,469,0007T) * U RAFEE 2
17 38 I /9 0 kE 39 #0125,548,0000%
(ZZT—=%:124,899,0000%) st E T :

RRWEEEHRAF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

(a) Basic earnings per share
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the
Company of $107,611,000 (2013: $139,469,000) and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of 125,548,000
shares (2013: 124,899,000 shares) in issue during the year,
calculated as follows:



11 SREBR(E)
(a) BREXER(E)

11 Earnings per share (continued)
(a) Basic earnings per share (continued)

BB e T E Weighted average number of ordinary shares:

—E-mEF —E-=F

2014 2013

BAHEA BishE 2G|

Number of Number of

shares shares

TR T

‘000 ‘000

REOA—BRE TSR Issued ordinary shares at 1 April 125,178 124,500

TEEREN T E Effect of share options exercised 780 764

El B (D F P& Effect of shares repurchased (410) (365)
R=A=+—HH Weighted average number of ordinary shares

TR INE T8 at 31 March 125,548 124,899

(b) BREFRR

BB ERFRIZBANR L BBAERS
% B8 &5 3% F1107,611,0000( — &2 — =
LA K Bt AR
B hNAE S 19 #126,888,0000% ( — & — =
£ 1 126,752,0000) st E 0 -

£ :139,469,0007T )

EERH I8 () -

(b) Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on
the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the
Company of $107,611,000 (2013: $139,469,000) and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of 126,888,000
shares (2013: 126,752,000 shares), calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted):

—E—-ME —E-=5F

2014 2013

RHEE ShEZ G|

Number of Number of

shares shares

TR FAR

‘000 ‘000
REst EBREARETE Weighted average number of ordinary shares

TBAR e T used in calculating basic earnings per share 125,548 124,899

AR BIRIBEAR AR Effect of deemed issue of ordinary shares

R T &I TR HE BT under the Company's share option scheme

LiBRN R for nil consideration 1,340 1,853
RfEst EGRESERTIE Weighted average number of ordinary shares

AR & used in calculating diluted earnings per share 126,888 126,752
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12 BERE 12 Fixed assets
(a) &&= (a) The Group
IE2iEg
BEH  HEME BEaRn
Mgy BRIB  HtEE N RENE DREER &%
Interests in
leasehold
land held for
Leasehold own use under
landand  Leasehold Other Investment operating
buildings  improvements assets  Sub-total  properties leases Total

T T T T T T T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

KA GE Cost or valuation:

R=E——&MA—H At 1 April 2012 114,249 254,468 440,258 808,975 44,202 8,098 861,275
B A% Exchange adjustments 26 138 162 326 = - 326
#E Additions - 49,563 61,708 111,271 - - 111,271
itk Disposals (5750)  (24459)  (24286)  (54,495) (1,200 - (556%)
ERBH Surplus on revaluation 887 - - 887 9,048 - 9,935
EEE Transfer (6,615) - - (6,615) 6,060 - (555)
WZE—=F=A=+—H At31March2013 102,797 279,710 477,842 860,349 58,110 8,098 926,557
R : Representing:

KA Cost 102,797 279,710 477,842 860,349 - 8,098 868,447
fE—=%-=F Valuation - 2013 - - - - 58,110 - 58,110

102,797 279,710 477,842 860,349 58,110 8,098 926,557

RHTE  BERAE Accumulated depreciation,

amortisation and impairment:

R-F——%MmA—A At 1 April 2012 37948 179065 241645 458658 - 635 450293
EHAZ Exchange adjustments 16 74 69 159 = = 159
ERTEREH Charge for the year 2,79 33,990 37,860 74,646 - M 74,858
HERE Impairment losses - 828 3,514 4,342 - - 434
HERER Written back on disposal (974) (24318 (19719  (45,011) - - (4s01)
EEE Transfer (555) - - (555) - - (555)
CRZF-ZEZA=-H M3IMach2013 39231 189639 263369 492,239 - 847 493,086
REFE: Net book value:
R-Z-ZEZA=1-H  At31March2013 63,566 90071 214473 368,110 58,110 7251 433471

90 RRWEEEHRAF
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12 EEEE(E) 12 Fixed assets (continued)

(a) X&ERE(E) (a) The Group (continued)
DRk
BELH RENE BIEBRH
i3 YRIE AftEE Nt RENE HESER it
Interests in
leasehold
land held
for own
Leasehold use under
landand  Leasehold Other Investment  operating
buildings - improvements assets  Sub-total  properties leases Total
T T i i T i T
$'000 §'000 $'000 §'000 §'000 $'000 $'000
HAGME Cost or valuation:
RZE-=4mA—H At 1 April 2013 102,797 279,710 477,842 860,349 58,110 8,098 926,557
3% Exchange adjustments 12 748 873 1783 - - 1,783
2 Additions - 31,228 47,101 78,329 - - 78,329
HE Disposals - (40032)  (26433)  (66,465) - - (66,465)
BffEE Loss on revaluation - - - - (781) - (781)
RZE-RE=f=+-H At 31 March 2014 102,919 271,654 499,383 873,956 57,329 8,098 939,383
% Representing:
AR Cost 102,919 271,654 499,383 873,956 - 8,098 882,054
fHE——F-mF Valuation - 2014 - - - - 57,329 - 57,329
102,919 271,654 499,383 873,956 57,329 8,098 939,383
Z5HTE  BERAE: Accumulated depreciation,
amortisation and impairment:
RZE-=%mA—-H At 1 April 2013 39,231 189,639 263,369 492,239 - 847 493,086
3% Exchange adjustments 76 401 369 846 - - 846
FENERER Charge for the year 2,591 35,145 38,04 75,940 - 12 76,152
REER Impairment losses - 6,417 10316 16,733 - - 16,733
HERER Written back on disposal - (34389  (17,013)  (51,402) - - (51,402)
RZF-EF=F=1-H At 31 March 2014 41,898 197,213 295,245 534,356 - 1,059 535,415

BREHE Net book value:

RZZ-ME=ZF=+-H  At31March2014 61,021 74,481 204,138 339,600 57,329 7,039 403,968
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12 EEEE(Z) 12 Fixed assets (continued)
(a) x&E@E(E) (a) The Group (continued)
REBMERAIEENDTAT : The analysis of cost or valuation of the properties of the Group
is as follows:

—E-ImEF —T—=F
2014 2013
Frx T
$'000 $'000
FHE T b FEEY (L) Leasehold land and buildings, at cost
ERANTHREE Medium-term leasehold in Hong Kong 75,095 75,095
ERBRINPEEE Medium-term leasehold outside Hong Kong 27,824 27,702
102,919 102,797
REYE(RMEE) Investment properties, at valuation
ERANTHEE Medium-term leasehold in Hong Kong 16,519 17,100
ERBRINFEEE Medium-term leasehold outside Hong Kong 40,810 41,010
57,329 58,110
UREHEREE AN Interests in leasehold land held for own use
HEER (RRA) under operating leases, at cost
ERANTHEE Medium-term leasehold in Hong Kong 8,098 8,098

92 RREEEBRAE
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12 BIESE(E)
(b) MENDIREBEE
() A EEER

12 Fixed assets (continued)
(b) Fair value measurement of properties
(i) Fair value hierarchy

AEERBEMRIZEEEESAER
BEMENRAAEE - ZFWEREHBA
(EAMBHRELDE13R/—T24
ElEAE IMREN =2 EEE
A o REBSIRIATHETEMRA
HE A ERATBRIZEEMERE - %
MEE AR BEFEREMERBEN
L

— F-ERMHE: RERFER
B ABNBEREERAEBERE
ERMAEREMIGH ARG HER
B)RTEANEE -

— BERGE: FREZELR
ANE(BIAREF—EBRAATHE
BAE) YEREXRAEAT
ARG AERFEAAEE -
TR 6 A (B2 IE KRR T H 8
BHBAE o

— FZERMHE KAERTAE
HRBAERFTEARER

FIERENMXER _T—NF=A=
T B#ETER - BN TERBIA
B EBH—hBEEENERRA
RARETT - ZRERITHETHEE
RAEXRER  HAE[REVED
PR R R A HER MRS - &
SEERED HRSM N RERSH
RETHENRBZMER

R=F-ME=A=+—H  F4E
AT AR LHE= D0
B -

HE_Z-—MNMFE=A=+—HILF
B UEEMAABEEALE=ZER
HEF=ZEREL - REBEHNBERE
EonBEBRZEHBRERNRE
HI TR AR -

The fair value measurement of the Group’s investment
properties at the end of the reporting period on a
recurring basis is categorised into the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement.
The level into which a fair value measurement is classified
is determined with reference to the observability and
significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique
as follows:

— Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level
1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities at the measurement
date.

— Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data
are not available.

— Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

All investment properties were revalued at 31 March 2014
by an independent firm of surveyors, Asset Appraisal
Limited, who has staff with recognised professional
qualifications and relevant experience in the location and
category of investment properties being revalued. The
Group’s management has discussion with the surveyors on
the valuation assumptions and valuation results when the
valuation is performed at the end of the reporting period.

At 31 March 2014, all of the Group’'s investment
properties fall into Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy as
described above.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, there were no
transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy is to
recognize transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy
as at the end of the reporting period in which they occur.

93



94

S Y
Notes to the Financial Statements
(BRIERBERA - BEGABESIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

12 BEREE)
(b) MENDAEBETE(E)

12 Fixed assets (continued)
(b) Fair value measurement of properties (continued)

(i) FE=BRAABEFTENEH

(i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

L/ES: bl fR{E R TABENEAE #E
Valuation
Location of properties techniques Unobservable input Range
B —TEWE HELBUE BEEYMHEE BH%ZE11%
P SR (8 (HT7)
Hong Kong - Industrial properties Direct comparison Premium (discount) on (4)% to 1%
approach quality of the buildings
B A — R BERLBE BREYHES (10%Z%10%
P SR e (B (Hr% )
Mainland China — Commercial properties Direct comparison Premium (discount) on (10)% to 10%
approach quality of the buildings

R EBMPEAMHIREYENR
REE RERERLBIETE  E
FE2ERLYENTE - WiR2E
ROGREFTEEMERELAE - =

The fair values of investment properties located in Hong
Kong and Mainland China are determined by using direct
comparison approach with reference to the market price
of comparable properties and adjusted for building quality

EREmRBHRENE  SRERS and timing of the reference transactions. Higher premium
WA BEFEEE - for investment properties will result in a higher fair value
measurement.
B EYENFANEIHNT ¢ The movement of these investment properties during the year
is as follows:
H%E
The Group
BE Bl it R
Mainland
Hong Kong China Total
T T Fr
$’000 $000 $000
R-Z—=#mA—H At 1 April 2013 17,100 41,010 58,110
{HEEE Valuation loss (581) (200) (781)
RZE—MOF=R=+—H At 31 March 2014 16,519 40,810 57,329

RRWEEEHRAF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED



12 BIESE(E)

()

Hib BEEBREERM - R 2RE
AE - BREARRIIAXBENTINE
HR 2R -

EAFERN  AEBEERERTET
DIEREFBBRE WHETELD
JEEEEER A R E B EE - RIBE
B FRELETEENERESHE
B8 1E16,733,0000( ZE— =& :
4,342,0007T) ©

AT UK B SRR A (R R A IR R AT IR &
13% (ZE—=%F : 13%)fEEH
BrEEFRBELSER -

R-ZE—ME=A=+—H " AKX
EE D WEB A RFTERITEEEF
B 4 2 BR T /{8 A&45,517,00000( —
T —=14F : 47,018,0007T) °

AEBNKEHERBREYME - &
LHEENSA/E—FE=F - BEK
SHESTBERAEHEE - AEEIR
B ERRR R S T E 7 R IR R
REREMRBEABWT ¢

12 Fixed assets (continued)

(0

Other assets include furniture, equipment, air-conditioning
plant, motor vehicles, computer systems and initial
purchases of cutlery and utensils.

During the year, the Group’s management identified
certain branches which continued to under-perform and
estimated the recoverable amounts of the fixed assets of
those branches. Based on these estimates, the carrying
amount of fixed assets was written down by $16,733,000
(2013: $4,342,000) during the year.

The estimates of recoverable amount were based on the
fixed assets’ value in use, determined using a discount rate
of 13% (2013: 13%).

At 31 March 2014, the net book value of properties
pledged as security for banking facilities granted to certain
subsidiaries of the Group amounted to $45,517,000 (2013:
$47,018,000).

The Group leases out investment properties under
operating leases. The leases initially run for one to three
years. None of the leases includes contingent rentals. The
Group's total future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases are receivable as follows:

—E-mE —E=F

2014 2013

T T

$'000 $'000

—FR Within 1 year 4,855 4,576
—FERBERFA After 1 year but within 5 years 15,491 6,354
20,346 10,930

HE-_ZT—=F=A=+—B1t#F
B HEESTHS L MEEY MR
& ) % BT SEUFE B 30 520,341,000
7T+ W #514,365,000 89 H & F s
NG

(9)

During the year ended 31 March 2013, certain leasehold
land and buildings and investment properties were
disposed of with net proceeds of $20,341,000. As a result,
a net gain on disposal of $14,365,000 was recognised.
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12 EEEE(Z) 12 Fixed assets (continued)

h BE_Z—=F=A=+—BIHF (h) During the year ended 31 March 2013, a property held in
B AR EIHEEREFEFEREER the PRC under a medium-term lease with carrying value
/35,173,000t % - ERBEEL amounting to $5,173,000 was transferred from leasehold
HHEENEAREDE BRAE land and buildings to investment properties as the Group
EE FILERAZMEERBIELER has ceased to use this property for its own fast food
B UWEZT——F+H-BBEZ operation and has leased it out since 1 October 2012.
MELME -

13 @8 13 Goodwill
—2-ImF —E-=F
2014 2013
Fr T
$'000 $'000
BRA - RMA—BR=A=+—H Cost, at 1 April and 31 March 1,001 1,001

BEEENESELE THREEE Impairment tests for cash-generating units containing

goodwill

NEFEIRKEEHERMEB DI DR GE Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units

FalERIM R SERETHT ¢ ("CGU") identified according to the location of operation and

business segment as follows:
—E-NE —T-=F
2014 2013
Fx T
$'000 $'000
EREG—THE Restaurant operation — The PRC 1,001 1,001

HeELE T kB2 BEE2REFA The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based

BEAE FFEAFLAZRREEEDZE on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash

WAFWEEENR S REMET - BB flow projections based on financial budgets approved by

LT EHRNR S nER MM Gt T = management covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond

VEHEET - M ERA AN HBEZXEEEHE the five-year period are extrapolated using the estimate rates

TP EZE R RIS R K o stated below. The growth rate does not exceed the long-

term average growth rate for the business in which the CGU

operates.

96 RRWEEEHRAF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED



13 B8 (E)
SAEFEREEMNEE/RE

13 Goodwiill (continued)
Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations:

—E-mE —E=F

2014 2013

ESES Gross margin 14% 14%
HRE Growth rate 3% 3%
PriR = Discount rate 13% 13%

ERERBEENEA TS EREER
BEME - FrRAMMEFHERRNR
TTEREFMFIRD —B0 MAARAIT
RERAERRABRASELETHER
BEVATHTER XK o

14 WEATMER

Management determined the budgeted gross margin based
on past performance and their expectation for market
development. The weighted average growth rates used are
consistent with the forecasts included in industry reports.
The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks
relating to the relevant CGU.

14 Interests in subsidiaries

¥ /N

The Company
= —T=F
2014 2013
T T
$'000 $'000
FEETRR D - IRAA Unlisted shares, at cost 82,500 82,315
FEUSHT B A RIZIE Amounts due from subsidiaries 326,221 299,051
408,721 381,366

(a) RUFHIBRARFAREER 28 - X
BERTE—FrKE -

b)) AZE—NME=A=+—BNTENE
NRIFBHII NI IEHREKE137% 5138
E o

(a) The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-
free and expected to be recovered after one year.

(b) Details of the principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2014 are set
out on pages 137 and 138 of the financial statements.
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15 At &S E 15 Other financial assets
rEME
The Group
—E—mEF —E—=F
2014 2013
T T
$'000 $'000
ERBERMEE Non-current financial assets
FEZDEEEES Held-to-maturity debt security
—JELTEERE — Unlisted but quoted 8,826 =
FEBERMEE Current financial assets
RAGEHE IR Principal protected structured note
—JE ETBERE(MI5E26(a)v) - Unlisted but quoted (note 26(a)(v)) 7,394 -
16,220 -

ZHUAARBAEBNESESHPE—
REMEBET APREF(H-T—=
F4+—A+=HE2=_Z—N\E+—AH+
=H) FFEELE3.6% °

BRARTEBUERBEHEE K #
BET NER2RNEER(BI =T~
AFE_ARBINETAARBEERE

F o

RRWEEEHRAF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

The debt security was issued by a financial institution in the
PRC, denominated in Renminbi, bore interest at a rate of 3.6%
per annum and had a term of five years from 13 November
2013 to 13 November 2018.

The principal protected structured note was issued by
a financial institution in Hong Kong. The interest rate is
determined with reference to the exchange rate of the United
States dollars (“USD") against Renminbi (“"RMB") at the fixing
date on 6 February 2015.



16 &8 16 Inventories
(a) MEMBRRARFATINEE B : (@) Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial
position comprise:

TEH

The Group
—E-mE —T—=F
2014 2013
Fr T
$'000 $'000
Rm&RAR G Food and beverages 27,273 27,220

B« BEME Consumables, packaging materials and
K B AthFEIE other sundry items 3,547 4,373
30,820 31,593
(b) BRAIHNEESHEINTWOT - (b) The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as
an expense is as follows:

—ZE—NE —T-=F
2014 2013
Fr T
$'000 $'000
EEFENRESE Carrying amount of inventories sold 540,840 515,547
TFEMUR Write down of inventories 213 195
541,053 515,742
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17 FEM AR = 0 H fth FE N 3%

17 Trade and other receivables

rEE NN

The Group The Company
—B-mFE —ZT-=f —B-NF T =%
2014 2013 2014 2013
Fr Fit Fr T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
JE LT AR SRR L A R LR Trade and other debtors 9,215 9,827 - -
EENEiEEAIPNEES =76 Rental and utility deposits paid 29,485 25,746 - -
TEREK Prepayments 18,123 20,426 224 226
FEUSFT /B~ RZkIE Amounts due from subsidiaries - = 170,000 92,684
56,823 55,999 170,224 92,910

B 7 /& #83,880,0000L( =T — = F :
3,154,0007C) ) A A EEZ &I - K&
E B EWER - e MBI RIEE T
R—ERIESRERESH an expense within one year.
(a) BRER DT
¥ 25 HA SR Y FE AR SR AN EL b FE UK &
FEFEREER(EMBRRELEE) H
REZAMAENRESTAT

(a) Ageing analysis

reporting period:

All debtors, deposits and prepayments of the Group, apart
from certain utility deposits totalling $3,880,000 (2013:
$3,154,000), are expected to be recovered or recognised as

Included in trade and other receivables are trade debtors
(net of allowance for doubtful debts), based on the invoice
date, with the following ageing analysis as of the end of the

rEH

The Group
—E2-ImF —F-=F
2014 2013
T T+
$'000 $'000
=ZE=F 1 to 30 days 1,892 5,967
=t+—Z=h+H 31 to 90 days 312 543
N+—Z—8BNA+H 91 to 180 days 20 -
2,224 6,510

AEEEBRFETHNHEX ST RUR
SREE AEBETG TREREBOED
BENF=tHELTHENEEY-

RRWEEEHRAF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

The Group's sales to customers are mainly on a cash basis.
The Group also grants credit terms of 30 to 75 days to certain
customers to which the Group provides catering services.



17 BRI MEGR(2Z) 17 Trade and other receivables (continued)

(b) FERME R YRR (b) Trade debtors that are not impaired
FEME B 4R & HhAR 208 (B B FE W BR SRR The ageing analysis of trade debtors that are neither
AT individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as
follows:
rEE
The Group

—E-mEF —E-=F

2014 2013

5 Fr

$'000 $'000

FE BASR Neither past due nor impaired 1,875 5,961

B —(E A Less than 1 month past due 321 213

BH—=={EA 1 to 3 months past due 8 336
BE=%"EA 3 to 6 months past due 20 =
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 349

2,224 6,510
e HASOR AR R R XA T A ERE Trade debtors that were neither past due nor impaired relate
BRICFHBERABEES - to a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent

history of default.

£ 380 BB FERUE #) FE U5 AR SR R 1 2= 2k B Trade debtors that were past due but not impaired relate
REBBRIEBEIRN —RBILE to a number of independent customers that have a good
FP-EBEBRAA HBEUAFELE  &7» track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
EEEEVEEE  MAEBERDER management believes that no impairment allowance is
AR R EUE - FrIA AR AT IR RVE necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been
B AEETERELERMFEE a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
#Hm e considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any

collateral over these balances.

() RARIEWHIEBRRMZIESEEM - (O The amounts due from subsidiaries of the Company are
BEEBRRFRE EE S - unsecured, recoverable on demand and interest-free.
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18 |ITHERMBA®

18 Bank deposits and cash

AEH RAT]
The Group The Company
—E-NFE —T-=F —E-OF —T—=F
2014 2013 2014 2013
5 Fr 5 Fr
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
RITEA Deposits with banks 270,045 237,673 - -
RITERMER S Cash at bank and in hand 56,013 53,319 388 363
FAEBESRERRMWIRE  Cash and cash equivalents in the
MR EEY consolidated cash flow statement 326,058 290,992 388 363
19 FE{TARSRFIE thFE T3k 19 Trade and other payables
AEH AT
The Group The Company
—E-UF = —Z-NF ZT—=F
2014 2013 2014 2013
Fr Tt Fr Tt
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
FERTRR A ERT & F Creditors and accrued expenses 244,342 223,704 2,058 1,751
TEWGRIEA Receipts in advance and
RIEWA deferred income 20,370 24,209 - =
TESRIE Derivative financial instruments
(HFE26(a)ii) (note 26(a)(ii)) 252 602 - =
BRHEES Rental deposits received 343 224 - =
FE(THB A RZIE Amounts due to subsidiaries - = 164,778 72,241
265,307 248,739 166,836 73,992

fRTETRRFEMELE KA A G
7,229,0007(=Z—=%F : 9,203,0007T)
5N - FRAH MM R R MR (R
BT R R R) BSRN —F NS

ERERARA - AR —FENEE - repayable within one year.

1 OZ RREEEBRAE
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

All of the other trade and other payables (including amounts
due to subsidiaries), apart from certain receipts in advance
and deferred income totalling $7,229,000 (2013: $9,203,000)
are expected to be settled or recognised as income or are



19 EfIRRMAMERRE)
PSR & B R 80 FE 11 BR B EL A R (S AR &
hERENERR  RREZAHTEN

19 Trade and other payables (continued)
Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors, based
on the invoice date, with the following ageing analysis as of

FRECDITAAT - the end of the reporting period:
KEE

The Group
—E-mE —T—=F
2014 2013
Fr Tt
$'000 $'000
=ZE=r 1 to 30 days 81,148 76,729
=t+—Z=h+H 31 to 90 days 172 2,959
N+—Z—BNA+H 91 to 180 days 3,014 972
—BA+—==F/+HH 181 to 365 days 785 41
—FE Over one year 681 1,004
85,800 81,705

The amounts due to subsidiaries of the Company are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

AN E RN B A R RIR S IR - %
B WRRRERNRERE

20 RITES 20 Bank loans
R-FE—E=F=+—H " R17EX At 31 March 2014, the bank loans were repayable as follows:
BB -
KEE
The Group
—ZT—mEF —E—=F
2014 2013
Fr Fit
$'000 $'000
—ERNFHEBOESHEZA  Current portion of term loans due
BNEREL 5 for repayment within one year 9,852 5,077
—FREERERNTEHRER : Term loans due for repayment after one year:
——FREMFEA — After 1 year but within 2 years 4,228 9,852
—MFRERER — After 2 years but within 5 years 6,389 8,869
—hF1& — After 5 years 448 2,196
11,065 20,917
RITERERE Total bank loans 20,917 25,994

103



104

g s B

Notes to the Financial Statements
(BRIEZSHEH - TRPILUBEITR)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

20 SRITER(E)
R-_ZE—WE=A=+—H " fTEX
Copiigil=s (N

20 Bank loans (continued)

At 31 March 2014, the bank loans were secured as follows:

rEE

The Group
—ZE-MEFE —E—=F
2014 2013
T Tt
$'000 $'000

RITER Bank loans

— B — Secured 15,237 19,354
— I — Unsecured 5,680 6,640
20,917 25,994

R-ZE—F=A=+—H Lo
BITERUAREEN Y EE AT (H T
12(e)) °

AEBHHORITEAEERAFAKE
BITARMBEIRRR L RNRZNE - 75
WRIFE - WERNTE RN ESBMER
T EMERLHER - WAKRBERRLY
EFANBREESRIREREE - K
SEETHERERETRERY

AEBERRBE SRR BEEH
26()i)c R T—HF=A=+—
B #EEZREACHAFEREENR
W(ZF—=F 8-

RRWEEEHRAF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

At 31 March 2014, certain of the above bank loans were
secured by charges on properties of the Group (note 12(e)).

Certain of the Group’s banking facilities are subject to the
fulfilment of covenants relating to the Group’s statement of
financial position ratios, as are commonly found in lending
arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group were
to breach the covenants, the drawn down facilities would
become payable on demand. The Group regularly monitors its
compliance with these covenants.

Further details of the Group’s management of liquidity risk
are set out in note 26(a)(ii). As at 31 March 2014, none of the
covenants relating to drawn down facilities had been breached
(2013: None).



21

22

& BB kiaF)
AEBEIZREBCRBIME QTR S F 8 F
BIDBRE » RIREBEEECERGEHR

FERANES  RIUBHEATEER
([RS8 ) - RESEE—(E
RERFKBRKTE > ABLNZEAE

B RERESE EEXMEESA
RIREEMRBEABRNS%AEEDTE
EEHRE BEEANEEABRLERA
25,0007T ° e B ABE S E
i o

REBEMWSBEHERIER  ~AEEER
BASMEIRIEF KRR 2 X2 SEMNE
1 5 HERURRET BIEVIREE o

LSRN UERNSERHR S

R-ZE——FNAALR  AREKILC
TT_FRREGE( —FT_FBR
#AE ) YREAEBERA T ——F8

PegatE)([ =T ——FEAEE] - /A

REWEILE  —FT _FEEEAET
ABRRHERE  EREACRE AR

RITEE 2 BRI AR -

F:i——ﬁﬁﬁﬁx%?ﬁﬂlﬁ—l— CERE
RENBEFTANEMER  EF5(E
FRIEHT %%&ﬁi##ﬂ TER)HS
MABRATRBEEER A RAEZER
& URBARRRD  EEBNEE
RTI=ZHFN&ESE  (RERER
%EIHH”*EIEH?“PHEEI#&{EEQFM&E’J

DU TE : (WA BEZEBREE B
AT REE¥BEBRLHE A REXRFTR

B A F U B R (iR EE - FRE
FEEEYNEHNBREZOPETHA
S BB R RERT 8130 M HE PR R RO 1T (E AT
FEBANREHR - REARRES
DB RB AR BN B mAR -

FRRBRE_ZS——FEREAZER
H1100,00017 B AR #EE & EL 18 B 2R3 © Britk

BAGN - I AR YR — T — — F B At &l
B E A REAAE -

21

22

Employee retirement benefits

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees in Hong Kong under
the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance.
The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement scheme
administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme,
the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the MPF Scheme at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income
of $25,000. Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

Employees engaged by the Group outside Hong Kong are
covered by appropriate local defined contribution retirement
schemes pursuant to the local labour rules and regulations.

Equity-settled share-based transactions

On 7 September 2011, the Company terminated the 2002
Option Scheme (the “2002 Option Scheme”) and adopted
the 2011 Option Scheme (the “2011 Option Scheme”) on the
same date. As a result of the termination, no further options
may be granted under the 2002 Option Scheme but the
options that have been granted and remained outstanding as
of that date under such scheme remain effective.

Under the 2011 Option Scheme, Directors were authorised,
at their discretion, to invite any employee, Director (including
Non-executive Director and Independent Non-executive
Director) or officer of any member of the Group or any related
trust or company to take up options to subscribe for shares in
the Company at a price which shall not be less than whichever
is the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in
the daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date
of offer; (ii) the average closing price of the shares as stated
in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange for the 5
business days immediately preceding the date of offer and (iii)
the nominal value of a share. Save as determined by the Board
and provided in the offer of the relevant options, there is no
minimum period for which an option must be held before an
option can be exercised under the share option scheme. Each
option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary
share in the Company.

During the year, 100,000 options were granted and
subsequently became lapsed under the 2011 Option Scheme.
No other options were granted under the 2011 Option
Scheme.
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22 LIESRHEBLRGSERHZS(E)
(@) UTREZSFERTERENERMK

22 Equity-settled share-based transactions (continued)
(@) The terms and conditions of the grants that existed
during the year are as follows, whereby all options are

e IARRESEBEEAXRNVROLE

g settled by physical delivery of shares:
®¥H BREHE BEER FIBRES QR
Average
Number of contractual
Date granted options Vesting conditions life of options
KT ERNEAGE
Options granted to Directors:
- ZTTHAFIANA 1,000,000 ARZZE—ZTFMA—RZE 7.0
—E—RF=ZA=1t—H
HAfE > B ERTTE
— on 8 April 2009 1,000,000 Exercisable in five tranches 7.0 years
during the period
from 1 April 2010
to 31 March 2016
- T ZTHF=/—H 240,000 AR=FE——F—HF—HBZE 6.8
—E—RE+t-A=+—H
RS REATTE
— on 1 March 2010 240,000 Exercisable in five tranches 6.8 years
during the period
from 1 January 2011
to 31 December 2016
BT S EAE
Options granted to employees:
— ZETAFMANR 1,102,000 AR-ZZE—ZEFMPA—HAZE 7.0
T R"F=A=+—H
HAf 9 R ERTT(E
— on 8 April 2009 1,102,000 Exercisable in five tranches 7.0 years
during the period
from 1 April 2010
to 31 March 2016
- 22— A+"H 60,000 AIRZE——F_FA+ BE 5.0
—Z—+tF=-A+HH
HF o IHATTE
— on 16 February 2011 60,000 Exercisable in five tranches 5.0 years
during the period

from 16 February 2012
to 15 February 2017

RRWEEEHRAF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED



22 LESERNLURNSERIEZR(Z) 22 Equity-settled share-based transactions (continued)
(@) LTRESEERTFHERENMKEIRIE (a) The terms and conditions of the grants that existed

Ho-FEBREYEBREERTRGOE during the year are as follows, whereby all options are
(&) settled by physical delivery of shares: (continued)
®¥H BREHE BEE FERESNHR
Average
Number of contractual
Date granted options Vesting conditions life of options
- —2——FmWA=-+N\H 640,000 AR=F——FHPA=-+/\HZE 6.65F
—T-NAERA=++H
B o IHATTE
— on 28 April 2011 640,000 Exercisable in five tranches 6.6 years
during the period

from 28 April 2012
to 27 May 2019

- ZT——FHANH 640,000 R E——FRANEBZE 6.5%F
“T-NFRANA
HAfE > B ERTT(E

— on 9 May 2011 640,000 Exercisable in five tranches 6.5 years
during the period

from 9 May 2012
to 8 May 2019

- ZT—=FMA=+HA M) 100,000 AIRZZE—NFNA-+HBE 6.0
—E-—FMA=+MA
B H AHTTE

— on 25 April 2013 (note) 100,000 Exercisable in five tranches 6.0 years
during the period

from 25 April 2014
to 24 April 2021

Bty EEBHSEE YR ZEEREDR Note: The options became fully lapsed in the year ended 31 March

o E—NE=ZF=+—HIEE 2014, before the end of the vesting period of the options. As

SERS R o B 0 XL RER A AR a result, the options have no impact to the Group’s financial
BEAFEREL ERLE - statements.
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22 LIESRHEBLRGSERHZS(E)
(b) FEIRAEREE MNEFIITEEMOT -

22 Equity-settled share-based transactions (continued)
(b) The number and weighted average exercise prices of
share options are as follows:

—ZE-F —EF—=F
2014 2013

T IR AE Ik BB AR
T8 £ IEE #HA

Weighted Weighted

average average
exercise  Number of exercise  Number of
price options price options
T8 Fi&
‘000 ‘000
FHARITEE Outstanding at the beginning of the year $8.07 3,682 $8.09 4,810
FAEERT Granted during the year $16.54 100 - -
FRETE Exercised during the year $8.07 (946) $8.08 (1,036)
FRBERK Lapsed during the year $11.73 (596) $8.93 (92)
FRARITE Outstanding at the end of the year $7.47 2,240 $8.07 3,682
FRATEE Exercisable at the end of the year $6.42 934 $6.46 738

REZANBITEBRERITE B B NE
FHBREAE16.71TL(ZE—=F : 14.60
JT) °

R-BE-—NE=A=+—BRTEBER
R MEFEHITEEARTATL(ZE—=
& :8.0770) © MAEFHFEHE L ER
B251E(ZE—=4F : 3.624F) -

RREEEBRAE
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for
shares options exercised during the year was $16.71 (2013:
$14.60).

The options outstanding at 31 March 2014 had a weighted
average exercise price of $7.47 (2013: $8.07) and a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 2.51 years (2013: 3.62
years).



23 MBRARATHORER
(a) ZEMBRRRFAROEHRES :

23 Income tax in the statements of financial position

financial position represents:

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of

REE
The Group
—E—-NE —T—=F
2014 2013
Fr T
$'000 $'000
RNERBEBTISHERE Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year 27,462 24,553
B E TS Provisional Profits Tax paid (18,409) (14,749)
9,053 9,804
LA FE R GRS Balance of Profits Tax provision relating to prior years 927 927
9,980 10,731
HREIRIE PRC taxation - 8
TRHRI P —F BRI T IR Amount of taxation expected to be settled
within one year 9,980 10,739
K&k : Representing:
AU E AR ER A TR Current tax recoverable (54) (10)
FEfT AR ERRR 18 Current tax payable 10,034 10,749
9,980 10,739
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23 MBRAKRFMTORERE) 23 Income tax in the statements of financial position
(continued)
(b) EHERELEBREENERE : (b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:
BEEARA VB R ERAELERIE(E The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised
E) /AENERTDARBE=ZT—N in the consolidated statement of financial position and the
FMNZFE—=F=HA=+—HILFE#¥ movements during the years ended 31 March 2014 and 2013
g : are as follows:

AEE
The Group
B M5 EHE
REWME  HEER Al RE

Bt ELEE Rz FGEE]
Depreciation
allowances Future
Revaluation in excess benefit
of investment of related of tax
properties  depreciation losses Total
T T Fr T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
RETHIZERELERE : Deferred tax arising from:
R-E——FmA—H At 1 April 2012 3,931 5,563 (780) 8,714
FirAMWERTIIR(GFA)  Charged/(credited) to the consolidated
(Pt E6(a)) income statement (note 6(a)) 1,634 2,379 (1,265) 2,748
EL BN EEEET Charged to the land and buildings
5|32 (FifzE10) revaluation reserve (note 10) 360 - - 360
W-_Z—=F=A=+—H At 31 March 2013 5,925 7,942 (2,045) 11,822

11 O RREEEBRAE
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED



23 MBRAKRMTHRER(E) 23 Income tax in the statements of financial position

(continued)
(b) CRERELEHREEEMERE (&) (b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (continued)
X&EE
The Group
ickic) BisEE
BENE HRAEY AHRH
Bt HEXBE RIRFIE k]
Depreciation
allowances Future
Revaluation in excess benefit
of investment of related of tax
properties depreciation losses Total
T T T S
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
RE TR ENELERE : Deferred tax arising from:
W-Z—=FmA—8 At 1 April 2013 5,925 7,942 (2,045) 11,822
TR B WERTTIX Charged to the consolidated income
(Fizk6(a) statement (note 6(a)) 376 741 114 1,231
N Z5E Exchange difference - - (26) (26)
R_ZE—WE=A=+—H At 31 March 2014 6,301 8,683 (1,957) 13,027
EEFBIRARERNIRETIEEER The components of deferred tax assets recognised in the
HEXBOAREE-_T—NFEM_T— statement of financial position and the movements during the
=F=A=T—BHLFEEZHNAT : years ended 31 March 2014 and 2013 are as follows:
b /N
The Company
BBER
AR K
RIRR 25
Future benefit
of tax losses
Fr
$'000
RE TR ERELERE Deferred tax arising from:
N_E—=—#FmMB—H At 1 April 2012 (780)
TR P Charged to the income statement 134
RZE—=F=R=+—H At 31 March 2013 (646)
R-ZT—=FmA/—H At 1 April 2013 (646)
R R B F Charged to the income statement 112
RZT—MF=RA=+—H At 31 March 2014 (534)
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23 MHRRRATHRER(E)

(b) BRERELEBREENEE (&)

23 Income tax in the statements of financial position
(continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (continued)

REE NN
The Group The Company

—E-mEFE ZT-=F ZE-NF ZT-=F

2014 2013 2014 2013

T Fit Fr Fit

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
TERI AR 2R TR Y Net deferred tax assets recognised in

BRI B A EF R the statement of financial position (1,957) (2,045) (534) (646)
TSR R R FER A Net deferred tax liabilities recognised

BERIBBE TR in the statement of financial position 14,984 13,867 - =

13,027 11,822 (534) (646)

(o) RERMVELEHIREE !

A& B H R B R F A E51861,586,000
TT(ZZFE—=4:37,151,0007T) R & T
B8 A RIAY B HORED B 2= £23,142,0007T
Z T — =14 :2,934,0007T ) B R B
MELEHBEEE  BALEBEEEER
B HBHE-_ZT-NF=-A=1+—8" &
MEBTIANRERBHRKEERES
AIMEF A BB B R RERZF o B
T R BB A R 8 B IE E51824,435,000
TL(ZE—=F : B)BEREBEFPREBER
RFEBEEI  RIBRITBE - BLER
THEE TR ERRE -

RRWEEEHRAF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised:

The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of
the cumulative tax losses of $61,586,000 (2013: $37,151,000)
and deductible temporary differences of $3,142,000 (2013:
$2,934,000) of certain subsidiaries as management of the
Group considers that it is not probable as at 31 March 2014
that future taxable profits against which the losses can be
utilised will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction. Other
than tax losses of subsidiaries in the PRC of $24,435,000 (2013:
$Nil) which have an expiry period of 5 years under the PRC
tax legislation, these tax losses do not expire under current tax
legislation.



24 #{i§ 24 Provisions

TEE
The Group

—E-NF —T—=F

2014 2013

Fr T

$'000 $'000

RERRG € 46 Provision for long service payments 10,940 18,060
HESMOEERAER Provision for reinstatement costs for rented premises 29,137 23,743
40,077 41,803

B BEEDREEEEAAZIE Less: Amount included under “current liabilities” (8,575) (8,953)
31,502 32,850

(a) REAIBRIKE &% (a) Provision for long service payments
KEE
The Group

—B-pmE =

2014 2013

T ¥

$'000 $'000

REA—H At 1 April 18,060 16,160
B (8m) FHEREIN EE (Reversal of)/additional provisions made (6,483) 2,605
BB AR LR Provision utilised (637) (705)
R=A=+—H~ At 31 March 10,940 18,060
EEEBEREIEN)  NEBEBRE T Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group
ERTENEBREEVEAFNES is obligated to make lump sum payments on cessation of
BB ERMREYN SR8 - ENSRE employment in certain circumstances to employees who have
BIZERENSESCHEEME - completed at least five years of service with the Group. The
b & e A AR 5 AN 2 BAE IR ET & 2 & 1 2k amount payable is dependent on the employees’ final salary
BAEEMHRIERS AEFET®EES and years of service, and is reduced by entitlement accrued
HMAEFEMBEREMEE - under the Group's retirement schemes that are attributable

to contributions made by the Group. The Group does not set
aside any assets to fund the above.
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24 ¥EE () 24 Provisions (continued)

(b) EEFFVIEERAZER

(b) Provision for reinstatement costs for rented premises

REE

The Group
—E-ME =%
2014 2013
T T
$'000 $'000
RUA—H At 1 April 23,743 16,122
B EHRAREINER Additional provisions made 7,123 8,560
BB ERE Provision utilised (1,729) (939)
R=A=+—H~ At 31 March 29,137 23,743

RIFEZXEFTINBEERROGRK - K
& BN HERATE B 19 5 M B IR R AL A2
EHEESMH  ARKANAAREASE -
At - NEEERIBHHEENEEKX
AR EAFHEL T 24 -

Under the terms of the rental agreements signed with
landlords, the Group shall remove and re-instate the rental
premises at the Group's cost upon expiry of the relevant rental
agreements. Provision is therefore made for the best estimate
of the expected reinstatement costs to be incurred.

25 BE MR 25 Capital and reserves
(a) &&EHE (a) The Group

AEBRAERNEEARE D WE
B AR AR BTRR - BRI BB 51 [ 5852
AR A R E Kk -

RREEEBRAE
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances
of each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
pages 51 and 52.



25 FEMER2Z) 25 Capital and reserves (continued)

(b) &2 F] (b) The Company
A w4 2R B0 AR K B 5 S R BR ) Details of the changes in the Company’s individual
MERH BB FEIEES AT components of equity between the beginning and the end of

the reporting period are set out below:

ka  ROBE S B EFRE  RERF BE

Share Share  Contributed Capital ~ Retained
capital  premium surplus reserve profits Total
BirzE r Fr r Fr i r
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
RZE——FMA—A At 1 April 2012 124,500 - 28,182 5414 254,463 412,559
TEEBHENRE Dividends approved in respect
of the previous year 25(c)(ii) - - - - (97,623)  (97,623)
KEEEERARE Dividends declared in respect
of the current year 25(c)() - - - - (28,786)  (28,786)
KEEEA Profit for the year 9 - - - - 110309 110309
R R 8l Shares issued under share
BTN option scheme 25(a)(i) 1,036 7,339 = = = 8,375
RTER Issue expenses - (51) - - - (51)
IR S E AR Equity-settled share-based
RERNHRZS transactions 25(d)i) - 1,296 - (302) - 994
B SR Repurchase of own shares
-ENEE — par value paid 25(d)i) (358) = = = = (358)
BRI HEGIE T — premium and transaction costs paid ~ 25(c)(i) = (4,126) = = = (4,126)
RZE—=F=A=1+—H At31March 2013 125,178 4,458 28,182 5,112 238,363 401,293
R=ZF—=FKA—A At 1 April 2013 125,178 4,458 28,182 5,112 238,363 401,293
TEEEHERNRE Dividends approved in respect
of the previous year 25(c)(ii) - - - - (61,500)  (61,500)
AEEEERNRE Dividends declared in respect
of the current year 25(c)(i) - - - - (28,880)  (28,880)
RERRA Profit for the year 9 - - - - 105057 105,057
R 8l Shares issued under share
BITRR option scheme 25(d) ) 946 6,698 - - - 7,644
RTER Issue expenses - (48) - - - (48)
Mg S RN Equity-settled share-based
RERNRS transactions 25(d)(i) - 1,461 - (1,446) - 15
EERS R Repurchase of own shares
-BfiEE — par value paid 25(d)i) (659) - - - - (659)
~BFRENRSKA — premium and transaction costs paid ~ 25(a)ii) - (9,891) - - - (9,891)
WZZ—ME=A=F—H  At31March 2014 125,465 2,678 28,182 3666 253,040 413,031
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25 FEMERZ) 25 Capital and reserves (continued)
() BRE (c) Dividends
() BRAFEENAELEIERRAIK (i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company
=i attributable to the year
—E—-NE =5
2014 2013
Fr T
$'000 $'000
BEIRNMZMHFEIREEM  Interim dividend declared and paid of
23.0Mi(==—=4 : 23.01l) 23.0 cents (2013: 23.0 cents) per share 28,880 28,786
RIEIERBEZDIKAR  Final dividend proposed after the end of
AR B 8% 39.01ll the reporting period of 39.0 cents
(ZZ—=% :39.01L) (2013: 39.0 cents) per share 48,931 48,819
RIERERBESZHIRER  Spedal final dividend proposed after the
RNERAR SRR ZAL end of the reporting period of nil cent
(ZZ—=% : 10.01) (2013: 10.0 cents) per share - 12,518
77,811 90,123
NS REEZ D IRRIAR S The final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting
BARERES L REEREEE - period has not been recognised as a liability at the end of
the reporting period.
(i) BRE—BIBFE R EFIZE (i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company
REATHIET KL 7]z iR R A9%. 8 attributable to the previous financial year, approved and
paid during the year
—E-mE —2—=F
2014 2013
7 T
$'000 $'000
B E—BIRER - WHAAREE  Final dividend in respect of the previous
AR ERERE TR financial year, approved and paid during the
39.0fll(=ZZ—=4F : 38.01ll)) year, of 39.0 cents (2013: 38.0 cents) per share 48,949 47,560
B E—BIRERE - WRAEE  Spedial final dividend in respect of the previous
BOER T HE AR ESM  financial year, approved and paid during the
10.00l(=ZE—=% : 40.01lL) year, of 10.0 cents (2013: 40.0 cents) per share 12,551 50,063
61,500 97,623

116 RRWEEEHRAF
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25 FEMER2Z) 25 Capital and reserves (continued)

() BE(&) (c) Dividends (continued)
(i) BRE—BIHFE  WRAFEZE (i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company

RS ATHEN KR 2 bz IR R 9K 8
(%)

MEE_ZT—=F=ZA=1+—HIF
SRR B RAFRIREREME -
RZZE—=FFERBRRFEEAR
HARR B K 45 B R HR AR B E AN R #iE
NS AR 2 B A 2= %8163,0007T
(BE2—ZT——F=A=+—HIF
€ 1 513,0007T) © =RIEEEEIER
MBEERFEINE =G,
(iNf TR IR MBI TR AR IR A A
FEIGAIARE ©

attributable to the previous financial year, approved and
paid during the year (continued)

In respect of the final dividend and special final dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2013, there is a difference
of $163,000 (year ended 31 March 2012: $513,000)
between the final dividend and special final dividend
disclosed in the 2013 annual financial statements and
amount approved and paid during the year which
represents dividends attributable to (i) shares repurchased
and (ii) new shares issued upon the exercise of share
options, before the closing date of the register of
members.

(d) BZ< (d) Share capital
—E-—MEF —E—=F
2014 2013
BRHEE x| BHEE el
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
T Fr T T
‘000 $'000 ‘000 $'000
EERA : Authorised:
SRR EE T E B Ordinary shares of $1 each 240,000 240,000 240,000 240,000
ERTRBERAE : Issued and fully paid:
RmA—H At 1 April 125,178 125,178 124,500 124,500
RIRFEAIEST B3 /TRURRID  Shares issued under share option
(BRFEEG)) scheme (note (i) 946 946 1,036 1,036
= B A& 13 (B3 (ii)) Shares repurchased (note (ii)) (659) (659) (358) (358)
R=A=+—H At 31 March 125,465 125,465 125,178 125,178
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25 FEMERZ) 25 Capital and reserves (continued)
(d) BA&(4) (d) Share capital (continued)
PR Notes:

() BIREIRES BTG, (i) Shares issued under share option scheme

REENBRERFBARBAARE AR
4 $£946,0000%( = Z — =4 : 1,036,000
f%) - B A7,644,000( —F—=
8,375,0007T ) + E #946,0007( =& —
=% :1,036,0007C) ;B AMRZ » TEATHY
6,698,0007T( —Z — =4 : 7,339,0007T)
BIFE ABR DR EER © 1,461,0000(=ZF—
=1 1 1,296,0007T ) B AR 55 I 5E1(q)Gi) AT
HOSHECKAERNREEARD HE
/@I\E °

BAKRT B

E-F-MEZAS+—AILER - &
ARERZHEBASBANT -

During the year, options were exercised to subscribe for
946,000 (2013: 1,036,000) ordinary shares in the Company at
a consideration of $7,644,000 (2013: $8,375,000), of which
$946,000 (2013: $1,036,000) was credited to share capital and
the balance of $6,698,000 (2013: $7,339,000) was credited to
the share premium account. $1,461,000 (2013: $1,296,000) has
been transferred from the capital reserve to the share premium
account in accordance with the accounting policy set out in note

1(a)i.

Purchase of own shares

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Company
repurchased its own shares on the Stock Exchange as follows:

=1 B R 47 R SR

HE FRiS#EME BaE RIEE

Number of Highest Lowest

shares Aggregate  price paid price paid

F3/ B Month/Year repurchased  price paid per share per share
T
$'000

—T—=%A June 2013 250,000 3,984 $16.00 $15.64

—T—=FtH July 2013 276,500 4,462 $16.14 $16.12

—ZE—=F)\A August 2013 13,000 210 $16.12 $16.12

—ZET—F—A January 2014 119,500 1,864 $15.62 $15.40
659,000 10,520

BRI  MAR T DT
RATEHEREZSLBROHEE -
BRI FT S TSR BRI S A A B
/29,861,0007C( — & — = 4 : 4,114,000
7)) }30,00070( = F—=4 : 12,0007) *
WEEARR EAEBENR M EERFR
Bk -

RRWEEEHRAF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

The above repurchased shares were cancelled and the issued
share capital of the Company was reduced by the nominal
value of these shares accordingly. The premium and transaction
costs paid on the repurchase of shares of $9,861,000 (2013:
$4,114,000) and $30,000 (2013: $12,000) respectively were
charged to the Company’s and the Group’s share premium
account.



25 EEMEWHE)
(d) BRA& (&)
Bt : (4

25 Capital and reserves (continued)
(d) Share capital (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(i) AR HAR 10 A i i A 18 AR T {52 O BB e A

(iiiy Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options at the end of

& the reporting period

—B-mF —T—=%

2014 2013

[-Sid= TT{0ERR 1TE(8 BREHE fEAREE B

Exercisable Exercise Number of Number of

Date granted period price options options

—EENFMANR —E-ZFMNA—HZE $6.26 1,560,000 2,102,000
—ZT—RF=ZA=1+—H
8 April 2009 1 April 2010
to 31 March 2016

—E-TF=H—H —T—F—HA—RH=% $8.08 160,000 240,000
T R~"Ft+=ZA=+—H
1 March 2010 1 January 2011
to 31 December 2016

—T——%=A+"A T A+XAZE $10.90 40,000 60,000
—T—tF-A+HA
16 February 2011 16 February 2012
to 15 February 2017

—T—FmMA=+N\H —T——FMA=+/\BZE $10.91 - 640,000
—T-NAFRA=-1+EtAH
28 April 2011 28 April 2012
to 27 May 2019

—T—FRANA —E——FRANBE $10.88 480,000 640,000
—T-NFRANR
9 May 2011 9 May 2012
to 8 May 2019

2,240,000 3,682,000

SEBEREE TESEATRBARAN
BE B RO o RIS L AR M —
FER BN ERRMEE22 -

Each option entitles the holder to subscribe for one ordinary share in
the Company. Further details of these options are set out in note 22
to the financial statements.
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25 EExMEMmE)
(e) REBHMENAR
() B wE

(i)

(ifi)

I R EBRRA B AR AN RN A A
SEREMBIE150 F157EME R iE
—AN—F(REPERIEE -

S

B R RS R B 0 4R
KA EFTEINEZH - AATIR
PO R (WFT B & SRR IR P
LR

AR ER

RE-NNNEFN—REH  ~KE
GRS @/NCIIRY % RN L) N
Al e ARRIMBANBARNGEE
EFEREANRAEHITRMDEER
EDIIARRBINHARE -

ARBNBABBREARE—NN\—
FRAEERRE - REARE—
NN—FRAPER) » ARTRHA
BERFTAADIR ©

AT - ETINERT - RRFTEEL
BABBERRIEHRBRIEL S
i -

(@) PO RRIR A S )R S 5 5
MmEE K

(o) HEEMAZEREERMDNE
BEREDHEITRANMEOEE
FREVARAD -

(iv) B G#HHE

BARREEBIERENE1()ATE A
Befn BEMN TR EEER - R
BT ARBIREBERENERSIGET
RITEBENRAEIE -

RRWEEEHRAF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

25 Capital and reserves (continued)
(e) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(ii)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account is governed
by sections 150 and 157 of the Company’s Bye-laws and
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of PRC operations. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set out in note
1(u).

(iii) Contributed surplus

Pursuant to a reorganisation in 1999, the former holding
company of the Group became a subsidiary of the
Company. The excess of the consolidated net assets of the
subsidiaries acquired by the Company over the nominal
value of the shares issued by the Company has been
credited to the Company’s contributed surplus.

The application of the Company’s contributed surplus is
governed by the Bermuda Companies Act 1981. Under
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, contributed surplus of
the Company is available for distribution.

However, the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend
or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(a) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less
than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share
capital and share premium accounts.

(iv) Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprises the fair value of the actual or
estimated number of unexercised share options granted to
employees of the Company recognised in accordance with
the accounting policy adopted for share-based payments
in note 1(q)(ii).



25 EXEMEMRE)
(e) EEHNHEEMAERE)

25 Capital and reserves (continued)
(e) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

() LHFIEEEY BN #
THMBEYNE G RFEERIENEE

B R R R
LM AR EEED -

TEf

(vi) FEERIA] 73R FEE
BA:f WFE=ZA=+—H " [t
NEFANGERRENEERE
/£281,222,000T( — T — = F:
266,545,0007T) ° EERFHEHLER
%EZEDIRARESF39.01L(=
T— = REIRRB39.01lL R AFRIR
HRf% 2.10.01L ) - & #£48,931,0007T
—ZT—=4% :61,337,0007T) ° 5Lk
BRERMERRARERLAE -

() EXEE

$%l“i§’é“$ﬂ’9$% B RMEEER
mre C RET (R HRE 5033 B IR

7}<$7%E BE B A NOBRFE AR TER A
HUSRLE - B RIRIZHE R -

RZE—WF=ZA=+—H ' A&£HE
48 {8 FR3E20,917,00000( — T — = F ¢
25,994,0007T ) ° fL4h » R =T — O F
—A=+—8 aEXR(AAEELR
BB ANMBEEOLE)A3.9% (=
T—=F:50%) - R_ZE—ME=HA
=t—B AEENTHERNRSE
# A& #£326,058,000T( =& — = 4 :
290,992,0007T) °

REEES LT R MEEELE AR
B NEGRE SRR AR
=0 AR ) R B A R B AN AR E 18 B AN AR
78 2 ARG T - 3 8 [R] RO AR iR
MRBEARBFLRE -

(v) Land and buildings revaluation reserve
The land and buildings revaluation reserve comprises the
fair value change arising on the revaluation of property
held for own use upon transfer to investment property.

(vi) Distributability of reserves

At 31 March 2014, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders of the
Company was $281,222,000 (2013: $266,545,000). After
the end of the reporting period, the Directors proposed a
final dividend of 39.0 cents (2013: a final dividend of 39.0
cents and a special final dividend of 10.0 cents) per share
amounting to $48,931,000 (2013: $61,337,000). The
dividend has not been recognised as a liability at the end
of the reporting period.

(f) Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders, by
pricing products commensurately with the level of risk and by
securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

As 31 March 2014, the Group has total borrowings amounting
to $20,917,000 (2013: $25,994,000). The gearing ratio,
representing the ratio of total borrowings to the total share
capital and reserves of the Group was 3.9% (2013: 5.0%)
at 31 March 2014. The Group had time deposits and cash
balances as at 31 March 2014 amounting to $326,058,000
(2013: $290,992,000).

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a
sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.
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26 EMEBEERAREE

(a) cRIEREER AAEE
AEESHEEIFEBBRERPLREE
REBES  FRMEEER -  AEBEYH
EEEBAEAERANAETRELRR
FTiR AR & B E b & IR BRE A8 % i
% HIAT o

() 1=Em=EE
AEEMEERR T ERE R
o Efbre R - SRITER RN
RITHREREMERMEE - B1EE
DHIEEENEERE - Y AT
RIFLEEREBRNEE -

MRS EMEERTS - A%
BABRENBR @ ERAKERA
RIFEERENEFPIREERRS -
TERPEURE - NEBRTRE
AR - RIEHR - EERERIL
EHIREMERERIFR

AEERTERER - ReERMEM
TREE-REFREERRINE
B -

BRI EE28 P B A A RIZLE THIE AR
MERTTHEAEERMHMBER - A%
B3 R T L R BUE AR E
FEAZERERR

BRAA S B R YR E A FE
WHAELHEERRHNE-FPEE
BEABTHIIRMET

RRWEEEHRAF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

26 Financial risk management and fair value

(a) Financial risk management and fair value
Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency
risks arises in the normal course of the Group's business.
The Group's exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(i) Credit risk
The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
and other receivables, bank deposits and cash at bank and
other financial assets. Management has a credit policy in
place and the expenses to these credit risks are monitored
on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, the Group
has policies in place to ensure that catering services are
provided to customers with a sound credit history. Sales
to retail customers are made in cash, Octopus or via major
credit cards. At the end of the reporting period, there
were no significant concentrations of credit risk.

The Group’s time deposits and cash balances and
other financial assets are normally placed with financial
institutions of high credit quality.

Except for the financial guarantee given by the Company
in respect of banking facilities granted to certain
subsidiaries as disclosed in note 28, the Group does not
provide any other guarantees which would expose the
Group to credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other
receivables are set out in note 17.
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26 Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(a) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(i) Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including the
short term investment of cash surpluses and the raising of
loans to cover expected cash demands, subject to approval
by the Company’s board of directors when the borrowings
exceed certain pre-determined levels of authority.
The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirement and its compliance with lending covenants,
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.

The following table shows the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
Group’s and the Company’s non-derivative and derivative
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on
rates current at the end of the reporting period) and the
earliest date the Group and the Company can be required
to pay.

For term loans subject to repayment on demand clauses
which can be exercised at the bank’s sole discretion, the
analysis shows the cash outflow based on the contractual
repayment schedule and, separately, the impact to the
timing of the cash outflows if the lenders were to invoke
their unconditional rights to call the loans with immediate
effect.
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26 Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(a) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(ii) Liquidity risk (continued)

A58
The Group
—2-mF
2014
HESES
Rz —FHE WENL
RHSE  REAE —£R BRER BREER BERE
Total More than ~ More than
contractual 1yearbut 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted Within less than lessthan  More than
amount  cash flow 1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years
r Fr T Fr Fr Fr
$000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
FITER Bank loans 20,917 21,998 10,292 4,519 6,737 450
BliSE: Rental deposits received 1,711 1,711 343 208 1,160 -
JE(BRMER 2 Creditors and accrued expenses 244,342 244,342 244,342 - - -
fTESRMTA Derivative financial instruments 252 283 200 7 12 -
267,222 268,334 255,177 4,798 7,909 450
A5
The Group
—Z-=F
2013
BESES
FERE —FHE WEFL L
REEE  RELE —fx  ERFR  ERERN  RFENE
Total More than ~ More than
contractual Tyearbut 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted Within less than lessthan  More than
amount  cash flow 1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years
T T Tr T T Tr
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
FITER Bank loans 25,994 27,684 5,685 10,293 9,458 2,248
BElszRe Rental deposits received 1,376 1376 224 323 829 -
JEBR MR 2R Creditors and accrued expenses 223,704 223,704 223,704 = = =
fTESRIA Derivative financial instruments 602 620 34 197 82 -
251,676 253,384 229,954 10,813 10,369 2,248

'I 24 RIREEBERDE

FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED



26 EMEARERRAREEE) 26 Financial risk management and fair value (continued)

(a) EREREER NAEE(E) (a) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(i) EBEEER(E) (ii) Liquidity risk (continued)
AT
The Company
—E—-mEF
2014
HESES
TRRES
RESE mER —FR
Total
contractual
Carrying undiscounted Within
amount cash flow 1 year
Fr Fr Frx
$'000 $'000 $'000
FESBR KA FERT & A Creditors and accrued expenses 2,058 2,058 2,058
JEAST Bt 2 R RE Amounts due to subsidiaries 164,778 164,778 164,778
166,836 166,836 166,836
PIN/NG]
The Company
—E—=F
2013
BESES
RR e
RES% mERE —FNRN
Total
contractual
Carrying  undiscounted Within
amount cash flow 1 year
Fit Fit Tt
$'000 $'000 $'000
FEN R ERT & A Creditors and accrued expenses 1,751 1,751 1,751
JEAST Bt /B8 1 R FRIE Amounts due to subsidiaries 72,241 72,241 72,241
73,992 73,992 73,992
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BH)  UWEEFEAREBBRNIER
T - EBUEE W E T AE E)F R E R
HE - RN -_T—MNF=A=+—8"
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26 Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(a) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(iii) Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises mainly from bank
loans. All bank loans bear interest at market rates.

For the bank loans, when appropriate and at times of
interest rate uncertainty or volatility, interest rate swaps
may be used to assist in the Group’s management of
interest rate exposure. The effective interest rate of the
Group's bank loans as at 31 March 2014 is 2.6% (2013:
2.6%) per annum.

Interest rate swaps, denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
have been entered into to achieve an appropriate mix
of fixed and floating rate exposure consistent with
the Group's policy. At 31 March 2014, the Group had
interest rate swaps with a notional contract amount of
$12,347,000 (2013: $15,973,000) to fix the interest rate
of certain bank borrowings so as to reduce the impact of
interest rate fluctuation.

The swaps mature over the next 2.5 years, matching the
maturity of the related loans (see note 20) and have fixed
swap rates ranging from 2.63% to 2.74%. The net fair
value of swaps entered into by the Group at 31 March
2014 was $252,000 (2013: $602,000). These amounts
are recognised as derivative financial instruments and are
included within “Trade and other payables” (note 19).

At 31 March 2014, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 50 basis points in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, would have decreased/increased
the Group's profit after tax by approximately $39,000
(2013: decreased/increased by $4,000).



26 EREAEEER
() RIEAMEER AABEE)
(i) FI R B (42 )

NREEGE) 26 Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(a) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)

(iii) Interest rate risk (continued)

A EBRREDITRE
AREHRDEHRLE  YHEBNE
Mt EAREMBANERTACE
HASERBEHRAEIAEE

EEES £

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group's profit after tax that would arise
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred
at the end of the reporting period and applied to re-

MERE)  AEEMRBRERIE measure those financial instruments held by the Group
HIRR AR E ) - gEASERHRE which expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk at
NEFERFEAERINTE T AFRES the end of the reporting period. In respect of the exposure
mIReRENERBREENS - A% to cash flow interest rate risk arising from floating rate
EoRTEaNmEINTERINE non-derivative instruments held by the Group at the end

EElES-EEapilNs iﬁ%ﬂ&)\ﬁﬁﬁf
LR BERER - DTRAE =T —
= FHR R EEELT -

of the reporting period, the impact on the Group's profit
after tax is estimated as an annualised impact on interest
expenses or income of such a change in interest rates. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2013.

(iv) B% 2 fz (iv) Currency risk
REBFTEEMINEREEZIRE A The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily

REEREEBNERBINE R AN
B BEMMRITER - 5/ BUEE
RN EETERETMARKE - 40
REBEHNKREBR - FAEESHE

through cash at bank that are denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the operations to
which they relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are
primarily United States dollars and Renminbi. The Group

PVEFRIREEXREEING - AR ensures that the net exposure is kept to an acceptable
H#HE R R R E R R X AR o level by buying or selling foreign currencies at spot rates

TRFAFMAEBERHRE L RAEBE
BERBHINEE B AN EETHED
EEREEXREMELNIINERR
BE - BIImME - ERBERNER
EHRNBREXMERABEINR - B
FEE TR AREEN REE R
BERIMEE ETE R S AR PIE LY
ER o

where necessary to address short term imbalances.

The following tables detail the Group’s exposure at
the end of the reporting period to foreign currency risk
arising from recognised assets or liabilities denominated
in a currency other than the functional currency of the
operations to which they relate. For presentation purposes,
the amounts of the exposure are shown in Hong Kong
dollars, translated using the spot rate at the end of the
reporting period. Differences resulting from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations into the
Group's presentation currency are excluded.
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26 EREARERRAREBEE) 26 Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(a) tRIEREERAABEE) (a) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)

(iv) E% a5 (&)

(iv) Currency risk (continued)

REE
The Group
NS R B RS (BB IR)
Exposure to foreign currencies
(expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E-mF T4
2014 2013

EH AR¥E =T AR

United United

States States
dollars Renminbi dollars Renminbi
T Frx T T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Hih @& E Other financial assets - 16,220 - =
IRITIFRMNIE & Bank deposits and cash 25,625 110,467 24,944 76,112
25,625 126,687 24,944 76,112

TRINE AR B AR &R LR E
St | R P 7 5 [ P 2 BB K L B ey B
ERREMROEZ (BRAAEHM
[ S B S N ) T R BR O B o
FEEE - ARSETTEE T - A
SEFERET LB THERTEHR
EREARES -

The following table indicates the change in the Group's
profit after taxation and retained profits that would arise if
foreign exchange rates to which the Group has significant
exposure at the end of the reporting period had changed
at that date, assuming all other risk variables remained
constant. In this respect, as United States dollar is pegged
to Hong Kong dollar, the Group does not expect any
significant movements in the United States dollar/Hong
Kong dollar exchange rate.

—E-NF —T—=%F
2014 2013
FREE R T B A
RRE RIRE
ExEA 7 RN EEEFS OHEFGMS
(T¥) O 4) (~gx) ORt)
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in profit in profit
Increase/ after Increase/ after
(decrease) taxation (decrease) taxation
in foreign and in foreign and
exchange retained exchange retained
rates profits rates profits
Fx Fit
$'000 $'000
ARK 5.0% 6,334 5.0% 3,806
Renminbi (5.0)% (6,334) (5.0)% (3,806)
RIREEEERAT

FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NRBEER
TREVAEERBEPRRIEEEE
ETENERMIARAEE - %F
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26 Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(a) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(v) Fair values
Fair value hierarchy
The following table presents the fair value of the Group's
financial instruments measured at the end of the reporting
period on a recurring basis, categorised into the three-
level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair
value measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with reference to
the observability and significance of the inputs used in the
valuation technigue as follows:

— E—ERMHE: RERAFER
wAEARREESBERE
ERHEERRMSNRERHER
BIRFAELABE-

— BF_EAKE: ERE_ENE
NEBIRZ S — B AR H) Al B 5
WAE) YERERBEADN
BB ABRFERAAEE-
T BRBABERERRT SR
EHEBAE

— FZERMEE: KAERTAE
RBAERTERAER

Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level
1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities at the measurement
date.

Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data
are not available.

Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

AR
The Group
R=ZZB-ME=A=+—-H RZT-=F=A=1+—H
At 31 March 2014 At 31 March 2013

E_ER E_BH
DNREE AR{EE
AREE FTE NR{EE T2
Level 2 Level 2
fair value fair value
Fair value measurement Fair value  measurement
Fr Fr T Tt
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BENAEENE Recurring fair value measurements
BE Assets
—RAEGEHERE — Principal protected structured note 7,394 7,394 - -
afE Liabilities
—TESRMIA — Derivative financial instruments (252) (252) (602) (602)
7,142 7,142 (602) (602)
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26 EMEAREERAAREE)
(@) eREAREERERDAAEBEGE)

(v)
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B o

E_ERAREEAEMANMGES
E R AE

EBUEZENAAEE  —RERFE
BEREDMIEMBERNAAE
BEFfS - EPEZEREERRIAKLE
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26 Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(a) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(v) Fair values (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

During the years ended 31 March 2014 and 2013, there
were no transfers between financial instruments in
different levels. The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers
between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the
reporting period in which they occur.

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair value
measurements

The fair value of structured note is derived from the fair
value of the underlying deposit by using discounted cash
flow analysis taking the credit risk and the exchange rate
of USD against RMB into account.

The fair value of derivative financial instruments is
determined by discounting the future cash flows of the
contracts at the current market interest rates. The Group
uses the interest rate curve of Hong Kong Interbank Offered
Rate (“HIBOR") as of 31 March 2014 plus an adequate
constant credit spread to discount derivative financial
instruments. The interest rates used are 0.4% — 1.0% (2013:
0.2% - 0.7%).

Fair values of financial instruments carried at other than
fair value

Amounts due from and to subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest-free and recoverable/repayable on demand. Given
these terms, it is not meaningful to disclose their fair
values.

Except for the above, the carrying amounts of the Group’s
and the Company'’s financial instruments carried at cost or
amortised cost are not materially different from their fair
values as at 31 March 2014 and 2013.



26 EMEARERRAREEE) 26 Financial risk management and fair value (continued)

(b) £ T ERERI (b) Categories of financial instruments
AEH AT
The Group The Company
—E-mOF = Z—E-OF —T—=F
2014 2013 2014 2013
Ft Tt Fx Fr
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
SREE Financial assets
Hib B E Other financial assets
—FERIHEE — Held-to-maturity investment 8,826 = - -
—RAREEF ABED — Financial instrument at fair value
S@ITHE through profit or loss 7,394 = - =
B MUK Loans and receivables
— EARBR TR ANIZ & — Debtors and deposits 89,748 82,465 - =
— FEUR BT B A R ZIE — Amounts due from subsidiaries - - 496,221 391,735
—RITFERANRE — Bank deposits and cash 326,058 290,992 388 363

415,806 373,457 496,609 392,098

432,026 373,457 496,609 392,098

REH NN
The Group The Company
—E-NFE = E-OF =—T—=F
2014 2013 2014 2013
T Fx Fx T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
SEaE Financial liabilities
BARBESABEN Financial instruments at fair value
SRTHE through profit or loss 252 602 - -
TR HESH PR AN SRR AR At amortised cost or cost
Rl Ok s — Rental deposits received 1,711 1,376 - -
— BRI E A — Creditors and accrued expenses 244,342 223,704 2,058 1,751
- NENSE e — Amounts due to subsidiaries - = 164,778 72,241
—RITER — Bank loans 20,917 25,994 - -
266,970 251,074 166,836 73,992
267,222 251,676 166,836 73,992
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27 #&iE

(a) R-ZE—MME=ZA=+—BARENMX
REF MR NIR B EBHE AR AEDN
K

27 Commitments
(a) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2014 not
provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

—E-NE =5

2014 2013

i Fi

$000 $'000

[REIFS) Contracted for 12,087 813
EREERATL Authorised but not contracted for 18,867 19,843
30,954 20,656

R-ZB—NE=F=+—HAREMNNE
ARAEYERHE—%7,891,000L( — T —=
F 1 14,678,00070 ) AR R & B A1 T A
DHRRERZA -

by RZZE—WNF=A=+—H  BETT
RRMEEHERBERNNREYE

Included in capital commitments outstanding at 31 March
2014 is an amount of $7,891,000 (2013: $14,678,000) for
the future development of the central food processing plant.

(b) At 31 March 2014, the total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of properties

HERREBEET - are payable as follows:
EE

The Group
—2-mF —E-=F
2014 2013
Fr Fit
$'000 $'000
—FRA Within 1 year 281,729 241,346
—FHRERAFR After 1 year but within 5 years 382,762 310,604
hFE After 5 years 24,780 24,425
689,271 576,375

RPEEBBERAT

FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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b) RZZE—MF=A=+—H8  REFH
BENKEHERRRENNKEDE
MENFERBIMT - ()

AREBUGLHEERAADWE - Bk
HME—RVTEHP—FENF XBE
MREBEDBEER  EETEKK
HAIEFEE  HENARERF SR
# ARMTSHES  c EHEE KRS
HEEI0%E20% (B — =% : 10%%
20%)mREATHESNEBEERET - BT
BIEELMERA -

AREBELHALLOHEYE - N _T—
ME=ZA=+—H  RBERFAIRBRKHD
A REHEBRZATRRARES A
RIE 458 51,014,000 ( ZE— =4 ¢
2,013,0007T) °

BRAR
RZE-MF=A=+—RH ARAEA
HETE2EMNBARESHNRBERK
HAibRTRMEEMAIRITIELIER -

RWERKR - EERABERBERET
HARRIERENAEEMET K - R
EHR ARRREZERABED
EREBEAMBENBRBEIRINE
fB 1= & %882,077,0000( — & — = :
76,480,0007T) * EFZEREEEBE

REE -

KR B I A L RA P R R AR AT AR AT R
A REARERAR(EEEAR ST
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27

Commitments (continued)

(b) At 31 March 2014, the total future minimum lease payments

28

under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of properties
are payable as follows: (continued)

The Group leases a number of properties under operating
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of one to
nine years, with an option to renew the lease when all terms
are renegotiated. Lease payments are usually increased to
reflect market rentals. The contingent rent payments are
determined based on 10% to 20% (2013: 10% to 20%) of
the turnover over the base rents and are excluded from the
information disclosed above.

Part of the leased properties has been sublet by the Group.
The total future minimum sublease payments expected to be
received under non-cancellable subleases at 31 March 2014
were $1,014,000 (2013: $2,013,000).

Contingent liabilities

At 31 March 2014, guarantees are given to banks by the
Company in respect of mortgage loans and other banking
facilities extended to certain wholly-owned subsidiaries.

As at the end of the reporting period, the Directors do not
consider it probable that a claim will be made against the
Company under these guarantee arrangements. The maximum
liability of the Company at the end of the reporting period
under the guarantee is the amount of the facilities drawn
down by all the subsidiaries that are covered by the guarantee,
being $82,077,000 (2013: $76,480,000).

The Company has not recognised any deferred income in
respect of the guarantee as its fair value cannot be reliably
measured and there is no transaction price.
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29 EXRBA XS
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IEIMIEE7ATIRER - BREEABNME
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29 Material related party transactions

(d)

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered
into the following material related party transactions:

Remuneration for key management is the amounts paid
to the Company’s Directors as disclosed in note 7. Total
remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note 5(b)).

During the year, a subsidiary of the Company leased a
property from New Champion International Limited (“New
Champion”). New Champion is a company wholly beneficially
owned by Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung and his family members.
In addition, Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung is a director of New
Champion. Rental expenses incurred during the year
amounted to $1,680,000 (2013: $1,674,000).

During the year, a subsidiary of the Company leased a
property from Hibony Limited (“Hibony"”). Hibony is a
company beneficially owned by Pengto International Limited
(a company beneficially owned by a trust of which Mr Dennis
Lo Hoi Yeung is a discretionary object). In addition, Mr Dennis
Lo Hoi Yeung is a director of Hibony. Rental expenses incurred
during the year amounted to $2,493,000 (2013: $2,493,000).

During the year, a subsidiary of the Company produced
certain processed food products to Sun Generation Limited
(”Sun Generation”). Sun Generation is owned as to 65% by
Mr Henry Lo Hoi Nai, 20% by the wife of Mr Henry Lo Hoi Nai
and 15% by an independent third party. As Mr Henry Lo Hoi
Nai is the brother of Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (a Director of
the Company), Sun Generation is a connected person of the
Company. Processed food products fee incurred during the
year amounted to $1,122,000 (2013: $975,000), which was
determined by a cost-plus pricing method.
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Material related party transactions (continued)

(e) Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to connected

30

31

32

transactions

The related party transactions in respect of (b), (c) and (d)
above constitute continuing connected transactions as defined
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The disclosures required
by Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are provided in the section
“continuing connected transactions” of the Report of the
Directors.

Non-adjusting event after the reporting period
After the end of the reporting period, the Directors proposed
a final dividend. Further details are disclosed in note 25(c).

Comparative figures

Net foreign exchange gain of $640,000 for the year ended
31 March 2013 has been reclassified from administrative
expenses to other net income to conform to current year’s
presentation.

Possible impact of amendments, new standards and
interpretations issued but not yet effective for the
year ended 31 March 2014

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and new
standards which are not yet effective for the year ended
31 March 2014 and which have not been adopted in these
financial statements. These include the following which may
be relevant to the Group:
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(BR3EZ AT - BAPHLUBEIIR)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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32 Possible impact of amendments, new standards and

interpretations issued but not yet effective for the
year ended 31 March 2014 (continued)

EUTBEH

H 2 BB
EREiDES
Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

(CEBGTEANENRFIE £ ITA : JI#H — R EEHAS A ErHH ]
Amendments to HKAS 32, Financial instruments: Presentation
— Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

(CEBGTEANEIGKIERTITETAMNE B REF S ayFE L ]
Amendments to HKAS 39, Novation of derivatives and continuation of hedge accounting

(BB G REANDFEI6RE AT EE B (E — 2 B EE T [E1E AR #7 |

Amendments to HKAS 36, Impairment of assets — Recoverable amount disclosures

for non-financial assets

(CEABHREERDNES M TA]
HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

—T—mE—-—HA—H
1 January 2014

—Z—-mWFE—H—H
1 January 2014
—T—NFE—-H—H

1 January 2014

HisKETHR

Not yet determined

REB EHERHELER] AR M4
A 9146 FE M B R FAETR2E - BB Al
B ARBERERAELER N
M BRI EBREXEARENRSE

KEMBATEAOR

AN - RIFF R F B BEDI) (622
B)EE3581% - FOMARIIRE MERT M
REEAQRR_TE—NF=A=AI
BRFANYBFEEER(RNRA B RF
ER-_F-NFNA—BRHK) - AEE
IEERHEFERT & B A BRI 9B
TBFHERE R RE S A Mg ®R A
EENTE - BB AR LEWERETE
ENFERYTEKR  ETBREXES

MR E BRI TR EE -

RRWEEEHRAF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these amendments and interpretations, and new
standard is expected to be in the period of initial application.
So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to
have a significant impact on the Group's results of operations
and financial position.

In addition, the requirements of Part 9, “Accounts and Audit”,
of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)
come into operation from the Company’s first financial year
commencing after 3 March 2014 (i.e. the Company'’s financial
year which began on 1 April 2014) in accordance with section
358 of that Ordinance. The Group is in the process of making
an assessment of the expected impact of the changes in the
new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance on the consolidated
financial statements in the period of initial application of
Part 9. So far it has concluded that the impact is unlikely to
be significant and will primarily only affect the presentation
and disclosure of information in the consolidated financial
statements.



TEME QA

Principal Subsidiaries

NEAEH

AL
RURLE

Place of incorporation/
establishment and

B8{T/
EMERFE

Particulars of issued/

FRAMBRS
BAt

Percentage of shares

Name of company operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activity
B S
directly indirectly
BHERBRATE EE 2% - 100% HFEKRE
Benley Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
Cision Development Limited 0 2RRAR (R - 100% EEXHG
Cision Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Dormant
ARECRINBERERAF BE 10,0008 Az 3 - 100% HEER
Fairwood (Shenzhen) Hong Kong 10,000 shares Investment holding
Development Limited
Fainwood B.V.I. Limited* KBERRRE/ BE 579,437 F R 100% - REER
EfB0.01ET
Fairwood B.V.I. Limited* The British 579,437 shares of Investment holding
Virgin Islands/ US$0.01 each
Hong Kong
Fairwood Consolidated RBERRES /B 1REEIET 100% - RERR
Investments Limited*
Fairwood Consolidated The British 1 share of US$1 Investment holding
Investments Limited* Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong
ARERE(EB)ER AR EE 254 - 100% FHAREER
Fairwood Fast Food Hong Kong 2 shares Restaurant licences holding
(Management) Limited
AREREERAF EE 100 B K - 100% EEEHREE
579,437TRER S
EEERD
Fairwood Fast Food Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares and Operation of a chain of
579,437 non-voting fast food restaurants
deferred shares
Fairwood Trademark B.V.I. Limited* RRERRES /B 1REEIET - 100% HEEE
Fairwood Trademark B.V.I. Limited* The British 1 share of US$1 Trademark holding
Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong
LEERARAR EE 254 - 100% HEERERE
Finemax Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Operation of a fast
food restaurant
YEERERAA EE 2R - 100% HFEKRE
Great Choice Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
YEERERAA EE 2R - 100% HFEKRE
Joybo Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
ALERFRAA BE 28R M0 - 100% HFERE
Leon Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
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Principal Subsidiaries

LA BR17/ KRR
TR RUR K& EMERFFE BAL FEXH
Place of incorporation/
establishment and Particulars of issued/ Percentage of shares
Name of company operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activity
B B3
directly indirectly
EXERERAF EE 2RR1H - 100% #HFRE
Maxlane Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
EXRBRERBRAR EE 21k - 100% EEERK
Professional Institutional Catering Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Dormant
ERERBRAR EE 2Rk fxdn - 100% HFEKRE
Profit Hero Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
EHERERAR BE 2Rk fxfn - 100% HFEKRE
Santic Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
RYARRERBBR AR FE 4,700,000% 7T = 100% EEEHEREE
Shenzhen Fairwood Fast Food Limited * The PRC US$4,700,000 Operation of a chain of
fast food restaurants
ERERBRAR BB 2/ MR - 100% WEZRE
Smarteam Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
AHBERERAT e 2/Rhx{n - 100% WEZRE
Suncity Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
REERARAR e 2/ hk{n - 100% WEZRE
Tacco Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
REBRBRAT B 2/Rhz{n - 100% WEZRE
Time Best Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
BB RARAR EE 2[R hx{n - 100% WEZRE
Union Hero Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
EHBRERAR e 2/Rhx{n - 100% WEZRE
Wallam Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
* P AR MBS RSB AER * Companies not audited by KPMG

(@ RZZE—ME=A=+—08" EHEE (@) At 31 March 2014, the financial statements of the subsidiaries

LIRS R EZ BB A 78 7R not audited by KPMG reflect total turnover and total net assets
EoRMEEBEG A BEM B XN A constituting approximately 8% (2013: 10%) and 8% (2013:
BE RIS Y% ( —E—=4F:10%)%8% 15%) respectively of the related consolidated totals.

(ZZT—=%F :15%) °

(b) B BA T EEMEBITEERRA (b) None of the subsidiaries has any loan capital in issue.
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AEBERFHBEHE

Five-year Group Financial Summary
(LABESIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE=A=1+—HLEE
Year ended 31 March

—E-NFE ZT—=F T ZT——F ZTIZTF
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
F Fr Fr Fr L
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
E Results:
EHETE Turnover 2,037,719 1,929,244 1,829,456 1,665,881 1,562,348
4 g A Profit from operations 137,055 165,950 151,510 147,249 111,718
RLE A A Finance costs (785) (865) (1,756) (2,100) (1,332)
BR A AT Vg A Profit before taxation 136,270 165,085 149,754 145,149 110,386
FRiSHt Income tax (28,659) (25,616) (19,374) (20,907) (17,863)
IN/NGTL el ) Profit attributable to
FEAR = A equity shareholders
of the Company 107,611 139,469 130,380 124,242 92,523
BERAEE: Assets and liabilities:
EE&E Fixed assets 403,968 433,471 401,982 400,039 398,892
[GES Goodwill 1,001 1,001 1,001 1,001 1,001
B WHEEEE Rental deposits paid 51,048 46,892 44,721 42,245 40,861
HEibhemEE Other financial assets 8,826 = 2,329 2,334 2,341
EETIAE E Deferred tax assets 1,957 2,045 780 663 37
MENVEE Current assets 421,149 378,594 355,950 334,629 278,613
EEHE Total assets 887,949 862,003 806,763 780,911 721,745
mEAGE Current liabilities (293,768) (273,518) (244,408) (250,583) (240,315)
EREEE Non-current liabilities (58,919) (68,786) (61,516) (65,287) (72,352)
BEEFE Net assets 535,262 519,699 500,839 465,041 409,078
BEE - Note:

1. BTBIEKEBRE)ESSHI A HEREXL S
BN I B EENRAATHE
HAHHE] RZE—TF=A=+—HHR
1TE315,686,0007C 2 HIEREN B EEHEH
ARBAE UFABEZ=

T—HLIEFERRANIIERT I -

F-—F=A=

1. Bank loans of $5,686,000 as at 31 March 2010 have been re-
classified from non-current liabilities to current liabilities to conform
with the presentation adopted for the year ended 31 March 2011
in order to comply with Interpretation 5, Presentation of financial
statements - Classification by the borrower of a term loan that
contains a repayment on demand clause.
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AEEFFiENREYZ
Investment Properties Held by the Group

RZE—NF=ZHA=+—H
As at 31 March 2014

b B

Location

RIS
Existing use

HEH

Term of lease

il

YT

EHE

5
RN ER 2
5510355 104055 5 5
Shop Unit Nos. 1035-1040 on Level 2
Lowu Commercial Plaza
Guangchang South Road
Luohu District

Shenzhen

PRC

BB

R

B+ EHE62E 705

BERE

ARENAEATRA2EEAT
SBASFLREM ML K157 EEHE AL
Units A1 and A2 on

14th Floor of Block A, and

Private Car Parking Space Nos. A3 and
Lorry Parking Space Nos. L6 and L11
on 3rd Floor

Po Yip Building

Nos. 62-70 Texaco Road

Tsuen Wan

New Territories

Hong Kong

Rz
Shops

BR MAEM
Warehouses and
car parking

spaces

e

Medium-term

R

Medium-term

RREEEBRAE
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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